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Financial Results

| am pleased to report the audited results of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2010. During the year, the Group achieved a profit from operations
from continuing operation of HK$2,805.8 million, compared with a loss from
operations from continuing operation of HK$207.2 million for the previous
financial year. The profit was mainly attributable to the valuation gains on
investment properties of HK$2,751.3 million, compared with the net
valuation losses on investment properties of HK$183.1 million in the previous
financial year. The valuation gains will only affect the accounting profit or loss
but not the cash flow of the Group. Excluding the valuation movement on
investment properties, the Group achieved a profit from operations from
continuing operation for the financial year ended 31 March 2010 of
approximately HK$54.5 million as compared with a loss from operations
from continuing operation of approximately HK$24.1 million in the previous
financial year. Such change was mainly due to the commencement of rental
income from ISQUARE during the year under review. With the inclusion of
the discontinued operation (see note 5 to the financial statements), the
Group achieved a profit from operations of approximately HK$2,811.2
million, compared with a loss from operations of approximately HK$209.0

million for the previous financial year.

Business Review and Commentary on
Financial Results

iISQUARE, a commercial complex housing a number of retail, entertainment,
food and beverage establishments, soft opened in December 2009. Rental
income from iISQUARE amounted to HK$119.6 million approximately for the
financial year ended 31 March 2010.

The Group’s investment properties comprising four floors of Goodluck
Industrial Centre in Lai Chi Kok and one floor of a commercial building in

Guangzhou in the PRC, continued to generate rental income during the year.

With the inclusion of the discontinued operation, interest income amounted
to approximately HK$2.2 million, representing a decrease of approximately
HK$8.4 million compared with the previous financial year. The steep

reduction in interest income was mainly due to a decrease in interest rates.
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Capital Structure and Liquidity
The total equity for the Group at 31 March 2010 was HK$7,683.8 million,
compared with HK$5,307.3 million at 31 March 2009.

As announced on 20 October 2006, Associated International Hotels Limited
(“AIHL”), which is the Company’s 50.01% owned subsidiary, has entered
into a facility agreement with a bank comprising of a 5-year term loan facility
of up to HK$1 billion and a 5-year revolving credit facility of up to HK$200
million. AIHL has an option to extend the facilities for two additional years,
subject to, among other things, the agreement of the lending bank. At
31 March 2010, the banking facilities were utilised to the extent of HK$1,105
million and the Group’s gearing ratio was 14.4% (calculated as total bank

loan over total equity).

Outlook

Though there have been signs of easing in the contraction of the global
economy, the market remains volatile. Given its excellent location, the
management believes that iISQUARE should become a leading consumer
destination in the area. However, while the retail market in Hong Kong

appears to be making a steady recovery, the outlook remains uncertain.

As announced on 11 December 2009, certain subsidiaries have entered into
a sale and purchase agreement with an independent third party to dispose
of the Group’s properties located in Malaysia mainly comprising the golf
course land, the golf resort which is situated on the golf course land, the
condominium land and the bungalow land (together referred to as the
“Properties”). Upon completion of the disposal of the Properties, the Group’s
golf and recreational club operation will cease. Pursuant to the terms of the
agreement, the sale transaction is conditional upon and subject to the
fulfilment of certain conditions precedent. The sale transaction was in
progress at the balance sheet date and is anticipated to be completed in or
about April 2011. The Directors consider that the disposal of the Properties

will be beneficial to the Group.

Tian Teck Land Limited X & EAR A 7
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Annual General Meeting
The Annual General Meeting of shareholders of the Company will be held on

Thursday, 9 September 2010.

Dividend

The Board has resolved that no final dividend will be paid to shareholders for
the year ended 31 March 2010 (2009: HK$NIl). As no interim dividend was
paid during the year, there will be no dividend paid for the entire year (2009:
HK$NIl). The register of members of the Company will be closed for the
purpose of determining the identity of members who are entitled to attend
and vote at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting from Friday,
3 September 2010 to Thursday, 9 September 2010, both days inclusive,
during which period no transfer of shares will be effected. All transfers must
be lodged with the Company’s share registrars, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited, Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 pm on
Thursday, 2 September 2010.

Staff

At 31 March 2010, the total number of employees of the Group, excluding
the staff employed by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Property Management
Limited for general building and property management of iISQUARE, was
128 (81 March 2009: 119) and the related costs incurred during the year
were approximately HK$25.8 million (31 March 2009: HK$25.2 million).

In addition to salaries, medical and retirement benefits, the Group pays
discretionary bonuses to its staff. Sponsorships for necessary outside

training courses are also provided by the Group to its staff.

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | wish to thank all our staff for their devotion
and dedication in the past year.

Cheong Hooi Hong

Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 June 2010
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iISQUARE

iISQUARE is located in the heart of Tsim Sha Tsui at the intersection of
Nathan Road and Peking Road. It is the first one-stop shopping and
entertainment complex linked to Tsim Sha Tsui MTR station. This 31-storey
complex provides 56,000 square metres of space comprising a shopping

podium, cinema box and tower.

The podium is a vibrant new hub for world-class fashion and lifestyle brands,
complemented by five grand cineplexes, including a 448-seat digital IMAX
Theatre. iISQUARE also features fine-dining restaurants and lifestyle services

in its iconic tower.

Goodluck Industrial Centre
Four floors of Goodluck Industrial Centre belong to the Company. There are
automobile showrooms, vehicle workshops and carparking spaces. The

Centre is located in Lai Chi Kok, Kowloon.

Austin Hills Golf Resort

This golf resort is in the city of Johor Bahru, Malaysia. There are three 9-hole
golf courses. Other entertainment facilities include tennis courts, a driving
range, a games room, pool tables, 8-lane bowling alleys, a lounge/karaoke
and a swimming pool. There are also 66 suites and food and beverage

establishments.

Tian Teck Land Limited X & EAR A 7
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Corporate Governance Practices

The Company recognises its responsibilities to shareholders and is therefore
committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate governance. To
accomplish this, the Company has reviewed its practices and procedure,

and identified and formalised appropriate measures.

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2010, the Company complied with all
the code provisions set out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices
(“CG Code”) in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) except that
the roles of chairman and chief executive officer were not separated and
performed by two individuals, which was inconsistent with code provision

A.2.1 of the CG Code.

In respect of the deviation from code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code,
Mr Cheong Hooi Hong is both the Chairman and chief executive officer of
the Company. The Board of Directors considers that the current structure
does not have any adverse effect on the Company and believes that this
structure enables the Group to make and implement decisions promptly

and efficiently.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its
code for dealing in securities in the Company by its directors (“Model Code”).
Specific enquiry has been made with all directors of the Company of any
non-compliance with the Model Code, and all directors have confirmed
compliance with the required standard set out in the Model Code during the

year ended 31 March 2010.
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Board of Directors
The Board of Directors during the year ended 31 March 2010 comprised the

following directors:

Executive Directors

Mr Cheong Hooi Hong (Chairman)

Mr Cheong Kheng Lim (Deputy Chairman)
Mr Cheong Keng Hooi

Mr Cheong Sim Lam

Miss Cheong Chong Ling

Non-executive Directors
Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles
Mr Lau Wah Sum

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul
Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam

Mr Tse Pang Yuen

Mr Cheong Hooi Hong (who is both the Chairman and chief executive officer
of the Company), Mr Cheong Kheng Lim, Mr Cheong Keng Hooi and
Mr Cheong Sim Lam are brothers. Miss Cheong Chong Ling is the daughter
of Mr Cheong Kheng Lim and the niece of Messrs Cheong Hooi Hong,
Cheong Keng Hooi and Cheong Sim Lam. Some of the directors who are

members of the Cheong family own business outside the Group together.

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Group. It
formulates objectives, overall strategies and business plans and oversees
the financial and management performance of the Group. For efficient
operation, certain functions and authorities are delegated to the
management, which include implementation of objectives, strategies and
plans adopted by the Board and the day-to-day management of the Group’s

business.

Tian Teck Land Limited X & EAR A 7
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Board of Directors continued)

The directors of the Company are responsible for preparation of the financial
statements for each financial period which give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flows of the Group.
In preparing the financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2010 on a going concern basis, the directors have adopted
suitable accounting policies and, other than the new and revised accounting
policies as disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, applied them
consistently with those applied to the financial statements of the previous
financial year. The directors have also made judgements and estimates

which are reasonable.

The directors of the Company are accountable for keeping proper records
which reflect with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of
the Group. The statement of the Auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set out

in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 34 to 35.

ABE T ZF=_A=+—HIIFEA ' &K Seven board meetings, of which four were regular board meetings, were
rElEBRtAESeeR(ATFOAAEHE held during the year ended 31 March 2010. Individual attendance of the
&) SESHHEREIT directors is set out below:

Directors

HESHEAE AERHFEERRE

Meetings attended/Eligible to attend

BITEFE Executive Directors

SERBIB (/) Mr Cheong Hooi Hong (Chairman) 7/7
EEMEE(FIF/E) Mr Cheong Kheng Lim (Deputy Chairman) 7/7
B Mr Cheong Keng Hooi 6/7
AR A Mr Cheong Sim Lam 7/7
$EIETS/NE Miss Cheong Chong Ling 7/7
FHPITEE Non-executive Directors

VEARRR S A Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 7/7
BIEERSEE Mr Lau Wah Sum 7/7
BUIHTEE Independent Non-executive Directors

EESTes Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul 7/7
S5 A Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam 7/7
FMS TR & Mr Tse Pang Yuen 7/7

Annual Report 09-10 ¥k 09
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Non-executive Directors and

Independent Non-executive Directors

The non-executive directors are appointed for a term of one year whilst
independent non-executive directors are appointed for the period
commencing from the conclusion of one annual general meeting to the
conclusion of the following annual general meeting. According to the
Company’s Articles of Association, they are required to retire by rotation, but

eligible for re-election, at least once every three years.

The Company has received confirmation from each independent non-
executive director about his independence as set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules and considers each of them to be independent. One of the
independent non-executive directors possesses appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise as

required under the Listing Rules.

Remuneration of Directors

The primary objective of the Group’s remuneration policy is to retain directors
and staff of suitable calibre by remunerating them at competitive level. In
order to achieve this, the Board has established a remuneration committee.
Under the Group’s remuneration policy, no director or his associates is

allowed to be involved in decisions relating to his own remuneration.

Tian Teck Land Limited X & EAR A 7
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Remuneration of Directors (continued)

The remuneration committee comprises three independent non-executive
directors and two non-executive directors. The members are Mr Chow Wan
Hoi, Paul (committee chairman), Mr Lau Wah Sum, Mr Sin Cho Chiu,
Charles, Mr Tse Pang Yuen and Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam. The main duties of
the remuneration committee are to assist the Company in formulating
remuneration policy and structure for directors and senior management; to
determine the remuneration packages for all executive directors and senior
management; to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
for non-executive directors and independent non-executive directors; to
review and approve performance-based remuneration; to review and
approve compensation payable to executive directors and senior
management in connection with any loss or termination of their office or
appointment; and to review and approve compensation arrangements
relating to dismissal or removal of directors for misconduct. Details of the
remuneration committee’s authority and duties are set out in the terms of
reference. The said terms of reference are published on the Company’s
website and are also available upon written request to the company

secretary.

Remuneration for executive directors and senior management is determined
by the remuneration committee on the recommendations of the chief
executive officer (except Mr Cheong Hooi Hong whose remuneration
package is determined by the remuneration committee without
recommendation of or reference to the chief executive officer) on an annual
basis. The remuneration committee also makes recommendations to the
Board on the review of remuneration for non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors annually. For all other staff, it is the
executive directors who fix their remuneration packages on the

recommendations of their respective department heads on an annual basis.

11
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Remuneration of Directors (continued)

The amount of remuneration payable to the directors is determined by
reference to a number of factors, including remuneration paid by comparable
companies, the Group’s results as well as the work-load, responsibility and
time commitment of the directors. When determining the remuneration
packages for senior management and all other staff, the remuneration
committee and executive directors, as the case may be, take(s) into
consideration the factors including market condition, the Group’s results,

individual performance, job nature and duties.

Other than the retirement scheme as set out in note 29 to the financial
statements on page 112, the Group does not have any long-term incentive

scheme.

During the year ended 31 March 2010, the remuneration committee held
two meetings, at which, the committee considered and fixed the
remuneration packages for executive directors and senior management and
made recommendations to the Board on the remuneration for both the non-

executive directors and independent non-executive directors.

The attendance record of each remuneration committee member is set out

below:

HESBRE FERLESRRY

Members Meetings attended/Eligible to attend

BESTE(ZESLE) Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul (committee chairman) 2/2

DEREE Mr Lau Wah Sum 2/2

AR o Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 2/2

hEBAEE Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam 2/2

il patas Mr Tse Pang Yuen 2/2
12 Tian Teck Land Limited X & ZEHR A 7
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Nomination of Directors

The Company does not have a nomination committee as the role and

function of such committee are currently performed by the Board.

As regards nomination of directors, the Board is responsible for the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of directors. For appointment of a
new director, the Board considers not only the skills and experience of the
candidate, but also his/her value to the Company, so as to ensure that there
is a balanced composition of the Board. The process for re-election of a
director is pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, which requires
that (i) every director should be subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years and a retiring director shall be eligible for re-election; and
(ii) directors who are appointed by the Board as an addition to the Board shall
retire at the next annual general meeting whilst those appointed to fill casual
vacancies shall retire at the next general meeting (instead of the next annual

general meeting) and directors so appointed are eligible for re-election.

During the financial year ended 31 March 2010, the Board made
recommendations and provided biographical details to shareholders of the
Company on directors standing for re-election. The Chairman from time to
time reviewed the composition of the Board with particular regard to the
number of independent non-executive directors. The Board also reviewed

and determined the suitability and terms for re-appointment of directors.

13
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EEERAwW Nomination of Directors continued)
EEE-_ZT—ZEF=A=1t—HILEERNMAEH Among the seven board meetings held during the year ended 31 March
HNEtRESTESET  MATREEHEZLE 2010, two of the meetings covered issues in relation to re-appointment of
EEM c SESHREZMAESTS ST 2XHW directors. Individual attendance of the directors at the said two board
\E 6 meetings is set out below:

HESERE FERLESERY

Directors Meetings attended/Eligible to attend
NITEE Executive Directors
ERIR S (EE) Mr Cheong Hooi Hong (Chairman) 2/2
BEMEE(FEE) Mr Cheong Kheng Lim (Deputy Chairman) 2/2
BB Mr Cheong Keng Hooi 2/2
B Mr Cheong Sim Lam 2/2
$EHRTS/NME Miss Cheong Chong Ling 2/2
FHTEE Non-executive Directors
e RB S A Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 2/2
BIZERELE Mr Lau Wah Sum 2/2
BUINTEE Independent Non-executive Directors
EESES e Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul 2/2
hZEHAEE Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam 2/2
ST AL Mr Tse Pang Yuen 2/2

ZEEN & Auditors’ Remuneration

REBEE_Z—ZTF=ZA=Z+—HLEE ' &Q During the year ended 31 March 2010, the Auditors of the Company, KPMG,
AIZEA — 25 BB B AR AN S B RE 4 provided audit services of a value of approximately HK$951,000 to the
B{E 4B 951,000 7T B 1% H AR 75 A B B 4978 Group. KPMG also provided non-audit services of a value of approximately
440,0007T 2 FEZEURTS - IEZBRBERRED HK$440,000 to the Group, which included HK$172,000 and HK$259,000
I 57 ®172,000 7T 77 # 259,000 7T B B 75 AR 7% being charges for tax services and interim review respectively.

e Bz B AR TS -

14 Tian Teck Land Limited X EibEHR QA
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Audit Committee

The primary responsibilities of the audit committee of the Company are to
make recommendations to the Board on appointment, re-appointment and
removal of external auditors; to approve remuneration and terms of
engagement, and handle all issues relating to resignation or dismissal in
respect of external auditors; to review and monitor external auditors’
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness of their audit process; to
discuss with external auditors the nature and scope of audit and reporting
obligations before commencement of audit; to develop and implement policy
on engagement of external auditors to supply non-audit services; to oversee
financial reporting system and internal control procedure and to review
financial information of the Group. Details of the audit committee’s authority
and duties are set out in the terms of reference. The said terms of reference
are published on the Company’s website and are also available upon written

request to the company secretary.

The audit committee comprises three independent non-executive directors
and two non-executive directors. The members are Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul
(committee chairman), Mr Lau Wah Sum, Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles,

Mr Tse Pang Yuen and Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam.

During the year ended 31 March 2010, the audit committee met four times,
at which the audit committee made recommendations to the Board on the
re-appointment of the external auditors, considered and approved the
remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditors; reviewed
the half-year and annual financial statements of the Group, including integrity
and significant financial reporting judgements contained therein, before
submission to the Board for approval; discussed with the external auditors
the nature and scope of the audit and scope and extent of interim review
before commencement of annual audit and interim review in respect of the
Group respectively; ensured that the Company had complied with its policy
on engagement of external auditors to supply non-audit services to the
Group; reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system and
met the external auditors without the presence of executive board members

of the Company.
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Audit Committee continued)

The attendance record of each audit committee member is set out below:

HESBRE FERLESRRY

Members Meetings attended/Eligible to attend
AEREE(ZECERE) Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul (committee chairman) 4/4
BIFERTE Mr Lau Wah Sum 4/4
AR S Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 4/4
PB4 Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam 4/4
AMS TR e Mr Tse Pang Yuen 4/4

2 EE 450
A EPESIZ Internal Control

EFEEAHARAINARPEIEHIE R AR
HEHRRBE - RRAEHERFMEL - BE
HEEREREFNBERL TREAREE « Wi
RARBEAREBFUNZERT - PBER LR
RBTEREER ~ ROIRRAN - BRULAIN - B
IwAae BEREREETEBEERE - A
- ZEEFMELE ER D REMEEFRR
MERZRARNR BEMEENBEMR -8R
BERTEM - MIFBHPEEER - BRI

ERXRREZZEENHBYT EFGEH
“E-EE-A=1THULEFER REEER
ARECTR I E OB BUETTIRAS XA REMAE
RELHE  BRMBEE  BFER  ARE
ZAEREEDRE - RERIER  EF2RR
ARREE R BERBETENERTRE -
MRS TABRANEBEMES  MARARZ
BTRENBIRENEREBEETAE - &F
RERBANEMNEREEARRIEHRS

) 4

16

The Board is responsible for the Company’s internal control system and
reviewing its effectiveness. Procedure and systems are in place to safeguard
assets against unauthorised use or disposition; to maintain proper
accounting records and to ensure accuracy of financial information and
compliance with applicable statutes, rules and regulations. Defined roles,
responsibilities and reporting lines have been established. However, these
procedure and systems are designed to minimise and mitigate the risk of
failure in operation and achievement of the Company’s objectives and can
only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against errors, losses or

fraud.

The Board has, with the assistance of the audit committee of the Company,
conducted a review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control of
the Group during the year ended 31 March 2010. The review covered all
material controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls,
and risk management functions. Based on the result of the review, the Board
considers that the resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting function, and their training
programmes and budget are adequate. The Board is not aware of any
significant areas of concern which has to be brought to the attention of the

shareholders.

Tian Teck Land Limited X & EAR A 7
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The Board of Directors (the “Board” or the “Directors”) have pleasure in
submitting their annual report together with the audited financial statements

for the year ended 31 March 2010.

Principal Place of Business

Tian Teck Land Limited (the “Company”) is a company incorporated and
domiciled in Hong Kong and has its registered office and principal place of
business at 9th Floor, ISQUARE, 63 Nathan Road, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon,
Hong Kong.

Principal Activities
The principal activities of the Company are property investment and
investment holding. The principal activities and other particulars of the

subsidiaries are set out in note 16 to the financial statements.

The analysis of the principal activities and geographical locations of the
operations of the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the
“Group”) during the financial year is set out in note 4 to the financial

statements.

Major Customers and Suppliers
During the year, the five largest suppliers and five largest customers of the
Group accounted for less than 30% by value of the Group’s total purchases

and sales respectively.

Financial Statements
The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2010 and the state of
the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at that date are set out in the

financial statements on pages 36 to 114.

17



ESERES

Report of the Directors

BAGE
WMAMBRRENREEMGE N AR B K
2,344,769,000 T ( T NF : BHEBK
173,818,000t ) B B A fE o RENHEtmE S
BINER e R RN

EXFRCRBTRERIBBRETRR(ZZEZH
FE) ARARBRAFERIBIKEHHK
S At2FRERBEEAKRE(ZZETASE :
&) -

“EB
25&1‘5621&@%?@9@%%%%%%%%8,000%
(ZZZT N4 : B¥2,005,0007T) °

B EEE
BT A AR BRI RR I BRI R 15 ©
AREHIRENEFFDT

FEARBEYE

Location

Transfer to Reserves

Profits attributable to shareholders, before dividends, of HK$2,344,769,000
(2009: loss of HK$173,818,000) have been transferred to reserves. Other
movements in reserves are set out in the consolidated statement of changes

in equity.

The Board has resolved that no final dividend will be paid to shareholders for
the year ended 31 March 2010 (2009: HK$NIl). As no interim dividend was
paid during the year, there will be no dividend paid for the entire year
(2009: HKS$NIl).

Charitable Donations
Charitable donations made by the Group during the year amounted to
HK$8,000 (2009: HK$2,005,000).

Fixed Assets
Movements in fixed assets are set out in note 15 to the financial statements.
Particulars of the investment properties of the Group are set out as follows:

Properties held for leasing and capital appreciation

B E 5

NELPEBIE ST =5
(NLEEAIBER T425%R)
iISQUARE

63 Nathan Road,

Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon
(Kowloon Inland Lot No. 7425)

18

RERRE HEFH
Existing use Term of lease
[EES ]
Commercial Medium

Tian Teck Land Limited X & EAR A 7



BEEE® Fixed Assets (continued)
HENFERZEYE® Properties held for leasing and capital appreciation
(Continued)

Hb 2 BERAR HEFH

Location Existing use Term of lease

FETERNE TS RIEEN A
HRABAL » —IBABN K

HRLT ~ L2~ L3N LA E(L

NEBELAE—AZT A

(B N Bk 2257 )
Good Luck Industrial Building Workshops and Medium
Unit A on the Ground and 1st Floor, car parking spaces

and Car Parking Spaces Nos.

L1, L2, L3 & L4 on the Ground Floor,
105 How Ming Street, Kwun Tong,
Kowloon

(Kwun Tong Inland Lot No. 22)

TFETZEF L R PREIE H AR
T 2 ZBRE FEURER

NERDESZXMAE

NEEIAN

G LBE I ERE7805%)

Goodluck Industrial Centre Petrol filling station, Medium
Ground, 2nd, 3rd and 4th Floors, showrooms, car parking

808 Lai Chi Kok Road, spaces and car

Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon workshops

(New Kowloon Inland Lot No. 5780)

BELES HENE H A
NE—EF+MEN

BN T S [

BERZANEE=T=%

Yi An Plaza Office Medium
Unit 1 to 14, 8th Floor,

No. 38 Jianshe 6 Road,

Yuexiu District,

Guangzhou,

PRC

PTD 58065 to 58149 and PTD 58151, AMEE KA
Mukim of Tebrau, Johor Bahru, Johor, (AnEA RS TR R B 5P,

Malaysia ENEARERE)

Undetermined Freehold
(classified as held for sale as

set out in note 5 to

the financial statements)
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Directors

The Directors during the financial year were:

Executive Directors
Cheong Hooi Hong
Cheong Kheng Lim
Cheong Keng Hooi
Cheong Sim Lam

Cheong Chong Ling

Non-executive Directors
Sin Cho Chiu, Charles
Lau Wah Sum

Independent Non-executive Directors
Chow Wan Hoi, Paul
Yau Allen Lee-nam

Tse Pang Yuen

In accordance with articles 103 and 104 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr Cheong Kheng Lim, Mr Cheong Keng Hooi and
Miss Cheong Chong Ling shall retire from the board by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for

re-election.

Directors’ Service Contracts

The executive directors (except Miss Cheong Chong Ling) were appointed to
their respective executive offices in the Company’s subsidiary, Associated
International Hotels Limited, for an initial period of two years effective on
1 January 1986 and their appointments continue after the said period unless

and until either party gives to the other three months’ notice in writing.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has an unexpired service contract which is not determinable by the
Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year without payment of

compensation, other than normal statutory obligations.

Tian Teck Land Limited X & EAR A 7
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[AFasa

BRI Cheong Hooi Hong
SEIEM Cheong Kheng Lim
=y iy Cheong Keng Hooi

fE 7 4e] Cheong Sim Lam
EERe Cheong Chong Ling
AR Sin Cho Chiu, Charles

Interests and Short Positions of Directors and
Chief Executives in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures

As at 31 March 2010, the directors and chief executives of the Company
and their associates (as defined in the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”)) had the following
interests in the shares of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(“SFQO”)) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers

(“Model Code”):

(@ The Company

BREERY%0.25 T2 RHAHE
Number of shares of HK$0.25 each
HE 1T
B BRAD 4 8
Bl AR KEER DR L WEDL
Total % of total
Personal Family Corporate beneficial issued
interests interests interests interests shares
4,625,792 - - 4,625,792 0.97%
46,023,872 1:1'6;292 F 46,139,164 9.72%
26,912,036 1,002,384 - 27,914,420 5.88%
1,099,504 = < 1,099,504 0.23%
412,000 - - 412,000 0.09%
2,000 = 115,200 117,200 0.02%
(3X) (Note)

i AEMER TAI115,2000% BRREAR QBT
B H115,20088A% 19 * BIREFH MBI - HE18 3
S AR AT I SRR D E AR -
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Note: The corporate interests of 115,200 shares represent 115,200 shares
held by Chason Limited where Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles is taken to be
interested in such shares under the SFO.
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EENESTHRAE®RER Interests and Short Positions of Directors and
PR - HERMOMEES WL  Chief Executives in Shares, Underlying Shares

N . |
&,ﬁg () and Debentures (Continued)
(b) ENEEEIPREIEAR A A (b) Associated International Hotels Limited
BREEBE I TZEBREE
Number of ordinary shares of HK$1 each
BT
RGEBH
BAER REED A F R HEDL
% of total
Personal Family Corporate beneficial issued
interests interests interests interests shares
Ey Yl Cheong Hooi Hong 2,073,992 - - 2,073,992 0.58%
EEBI= Cheong Kheng Lim 26,089,715 34,000 - 26,123,715 7.26%
SEmEE Cheong Keng Hooi 16,275,839 275,280 == 1665 15149 4.32%
fikede] Cheong Sim Lam 1,807,155 24,000 - NGBl NS5 0.51%
§ERAS Cheong Chong Ling 588,000 L 2 588,000 0.16%
Vit Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 242,000 - 120,000 362,000 0.10%
(3F) (Note)
F:  AREZ TR 120,000 BB EER A BT Note: The corporate interests of 120,000 shares represent 120,000 ordinary
FFA #)120,000 % i A% o BARFFH K shares held by Chason Limited where Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles is taken
AR RR S A AR R A I E R D M A o to be interested in such shares under the SFO.
(c) AustinHills Country Resort Bhd. (c) Austin Hills Country Resort Bhd.
BREESERERI TZEEREE
Number of ordinary shares of MYR1 each
EERT
RGBE
B AR XEER AT RS ] WESL
% of total
Personal Family Corporate beneficial issued
interests interests interests interests shares
$EIBAR Cheong Kheng Lim 1 = _ 1 0.00001%
fped=] Cheong Sim Lam - 8 - 3 0.00003%
B Cheong Chong Ling 1 - - 1 0.00001%
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(d) XEHRAT

R Cheong Hooi Hong
SBIEMR Cheong Kheng Lim
B Cheong Keng Hooi
frpedea) Cheong Sim Lam

Interests and Short Positions of Directors and
Chief Executives in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures (continued)

(d) Tian Teck Investment Holding Co., Limited

BREEREITZ2EEREE
Number of ordinary shares of HK$1 each

{Eai‘%ﬁ

EA RS XEiEs DR ! WEDL
Total % of total

Personal =111\ Corporate beneficial issued
interests interests interests interests shares
25 = = 25 25%

25 - - 25 25%

25 = = 25 25%

25 - - 25 25%

) HBEARAT

SRR Cheong Hooi Hong
SBIEMR Cheong Kheng Lim
fa e Cheong Keng Hooi
B4 Cheong Sim Lam

(e) Yik Fok Investment Holding Company, Limited

BREEREITZ2EEREE
Number of ordinary shares of HK$1 each

1HE T

EA RS RE RS DR | WEDL
% of total

Personal =101\ Corporate beneficial issued

interests interests interests interests shares

10 = = 10 0.00005%

10 - - 10 0.00005%

10 = = 10 0.00005%

10 - - 10 0.00005%

B EFTIRERE SN - AR RIS 5D 5362
BRERFNECMAER - JIRRE L‘E?E'JLAE
7 AR R B R AEH A R - R=F
= =S ER K@ﬂé%&ﬁi%ﬁﬂl}\;&
LBMEAN(RETRANZER)DLEREARA
iﬁﬁﬁwil(;ﬁﬁé;ﬁ {51 35 XV B0 BT 8 A 2
MR - HREROKERFOEDIORAE
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2010, none of the directors and
chief executives of the Company or their associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) had interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified

to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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FERREREMATETHRSG
MAARER DR ERNIXE

B Lal PR B AN R R EE MRS THA B A
]I RNARERM - WRIBEIRRESGHF
3RO ERRFNBLMANERBT  R-F—F
FZRA=t—BBEEARRRRMNIERELT

Interests and Short Positions of Substantial
Shareholders and Other Persons in Shares and
Underlying Shares

As at 31 March 2010, other than the interests of the directors and chief
executives of the Company as disclosed above, the Company has been
notified of the following interests in the shares of the Company as recorded

in the register required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the
SFO:

BREE

7&%50.257T IHEBTR A

TROBE  ABMESL
Number

of shares Percentage of

of HK$0.25 total issued

each shares

REER AT Tian Teck Investment Holding Co., Limited 237,370,032 50.001%

BT Cheong Kheng Lim 46,139,164 9.72%
(s£1) (Note 1)

B Cheong Keng Hooi 27,914,420 5.88%
(3¥2) (Note 2)

S =:r Lim Yoke Soon 46,139,164 9.72%
(7£83) (Note 3)

USE ¥ Wu Soo Huei 27,914,420 5.88%
(7£4) (Note 4)

G Notes:

©) SEM S A A 246,139,164 %A (7 F #946,023,872
BhEEMEEBAARES - 1152028 AR B
MEBLZLHEHE -

@) SEMIB IR 227,914,420 B (D # H926,912,036
MR EMIE S EEARA » 1,002,384 Al /R E FL B
HEBLZLHEER -

) ME BT HEA 246,139,164 %8210 #9115,292 %
BMBEBLZTEARES @ 46,023,872 A 5B
BB IR ©

@) MEE LA 227,914,420 % B 15 2 #91,002,384
RAREELZHEAREE © 26,912,036/% Al AH AL
BB LR -

BREMFABREEN  RZE-—FF=ZA=+—
B - ANREIWEEEANE B AR ERE S
{1 S 33614 AN E I ME A A B A/ F48
R O BOA R

24

(1) Out of the 46,139,164 shares in which Mr Cheong Kheng Lim is interested,
46,023,872 shares were held by Mr Cheong Kheng Lim himself, and 115,292
shares were held by his spouse, Ms Lim Yoke Soon.

) Out of the 27,914,420 shares in which Mr Cheong Keng Hooi is interested,
26,912,036 shares were held by Mr Cheong Keng Hooi himself, and 1,002,384
shares were held by his spouse, Ms Wu Soo Huei.

©)) Out of the 46,139,164 shares in which Ms Lim Yoke Soon is interested, 115,292
shares were held by Ms Lim Yoke Soon herself, and 46,023,872 shares were
held by her spouse, Mr Cheong Kheng Lim.

(4) Out of the 27,914,420 shares in which Ms Wu Soo Huei is interested, 1,002,384
shares were held by Ms Wu Soo Huei herself, and 26,912,036 shares were held
by her spouse, Mr Cheong Keng Hooi.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2010, no other interests or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company required to be
recorded in the register kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO
have been notified to the Company.

Tian Teck Land Limited X & EAR A 7
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Directors’ Interests in Contracts

No contract of significance, to which the Company, its controlling
shareholder or any of its subsidiaries was a party, or in which a director of
the Company had a material interest (whether directly or indirectly), subsisted

at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Management Contracts

(@) Agreements exist between the Company and Associated International
Hotels Limited (“AIHL”), a 50.01% owned subsidiary, whereby AIHL
agrees to provide administrative services (company secretarial) and
non-administrative services (office facilities and staff) to the Company
for an indefinite period. The aggregate fees paid to AIHL for the year
ended 31 March 2010 amounted to HK$1,200,000 (2009:
HK$1,200,000).

(b) A management agreement exists between AIHL and DTZ Debenham
Tie Leung Property Management Limited (“DTZ”) whereby DTZ is
responsible for general building and property management (except for
the services relating to tenancy) of iISQUARE for an initial period of
2 years after the date of the occupation permit and the appointment
continues after the said period unless and until AIHL gives to the other
three months’ notice in writing. Manager’s remuneration of
HK$353,000 (2009: $Nil) was paid by AIHL for the year ended
31 March 2010.

Apart from the foregoing, no contract concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the

Company was entered into or existed during the year.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption by the
Company and its Subsidiaries of its Listed
Securities

There were no purchases, sales or redemptions of the Company’s listed

securities by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the year.

25



ESERES

Report of the Directors

BiEEHRBIFE1321E2EEM
fEHIRE
RIBEERNFE+A-TH AARZHBERR —
S LAE A T D B —FER1TEI S — (D B & e
(TmER=E]) - BzhzAT - EAZERRE
HBITHEST -

ZREREEE —ZEREATF  SHABE
1,000,000,000TH EEAE M —E /B AF - &
H B #200,000,000THIBEIRE R © EFE E MR
FREREFROTRABNBERT @ B ARIEE
L HPRIER M o

RIZEE et - AEEIBIESTAE - FEMEL
SBIRE e A MBS A (AR DR RSty
ZRCR) N EBIEME R X RE MR EE
SRR BESEAIBCETRABSZ =TT
BIEgEH o

LB ONBERER - EFRITATENED
BRERNKEERREHEMINBELOME
BERMEEHB -

HWEHHREEBEENBERDATE - ARAH
R AR AN 13.21 1RV AR TE AL AR A HSR
ERFERAELFERE -

B Lal PR e SN - ARRDE A EMERE EHR
AIFE18. 211G REMELNRERT °
26

Disclosure Pursuant to Rule 13.21 of the

Listing Rules

On 20 October 2006, the Company’s subsidiary, AIHL, as borrower, entered
into a facility agreement with a bank (the “Facility Agreement”) with covenants

relating to specific performance of the controlling shareholders of AIHL.

The Facility Agreement comprises a 5-year term loan facility of up to
HK$1 billion and a 5-year revolving credit facility of up to HK$200 million.
AIHL has an option to extend the facilities for two additional years, subject

to, among other things, the agreement of the lending bank.

Pursuant to the Facility Agreement, it would be an event of default if
Mr Cheong Hooi Hong, Mr Cheong Kheng Lim, Mr Cheong Keng Hooi and
Mr Cheong Sim Lam, collectively being the controlling shareholders of
the Company and AIHL, cease to beneficially own, directly or indirectly,
at least 25% of the issued share capital of AIHL in accordance with

the terms of the Facility Agreement.

Upon the occurrence of such an event of default, the lending bank may,
among other things, demand immediate repayment of all of the loans made

to AIHL under the Facility Agreement together with accrued interest.
The Company will make continuing disclosure pursuant to Rule 13.21 of the
Listing Rules in subsequent interim and annual reports for so long as the

circumstances giving rise to the relevant obligation continue to exist.

Save as disclosed above, the Company does not have other disclosure

obligations under Rule 13.21 of the Listing Rules.

Tian Teck Land Limited X & EAR A 7
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Disclosure Relating to Rule 13.51B(1) of the
Listing Rules

There are no changes in respect of the directors’ emoluments at the level of
the Company for the year ended 31 March 2010. Changes in respect of the
executive directors’ emoluments for the year ended 31 March 2010 are due
to allowances for expenses actually incurred by the executive directors at the
level of the Company’s subsidiary, AIHL, and the policy regarding such

expenses has not changed.

Bank Loan and Other Borrowings
Particulars of bank loan and other borrowings of the Group as at 31 March

2010 are set out in notes 24 to 26 to the financial statements.

Five Year Financial Summary
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the

last five financial years is set out on pages 115 and 116 of the annual report.

Retirement Schemes

Particulars of the retirement schemes are set out in note 29 to the financial

statements.
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Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors of the Company as at the date of this annual
report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float under the

Listing Rules.

Confirmation of Independence

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
directors an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules and considers all the independent non-executive

directors to be independent.

Auditors

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A
resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as auditors of the Company is to

be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

By order of the Board
Cheong Hooi Hong

Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 June 2010

Tian Teck Land Limited X & EAR A 7
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Executive Directors

Mr Cheong Hooi Hong, aged 63, has been Chairman and a director of the
Company and Associated International Hotels Limited since 1983 and 1984
respectively. He is the Chief Executive Officer of the Company and
Associated International Hotels Limited. He is also a director of Tian Teck
Investment Holding Co., Limited and a director of all holding companies and
subsidiaries in the Group. Mr Cheong is a member of both the CPA Australia
and the Institute of Certified Public Accountants of Singapore. He holds a
diploma from the Royal Melbourne Institute of Technology in Commerce. He
has extensive experience in property development and investment both in

Hong Kong and Singapore for over 40 years.

He is a brother of directors, Messrs Cheong Kheng Lim, Cheong Keng Hooi
and Cheong Sim Lam and is also the uncle of Miss Cheong Chong Ling, a

director.

Mr Cheong Kheng Lim, aged 61, has been Deputy Chairman and a director
of the Company since 1983 and 1969 respectively. He has been the Deputy
Chairman and a director of Associated International Hotels Limited since
1984. He is the Chief Operation Officer of Associated International Hotels
Limited. Mr Cheong is also a director of Tian Teck Investment Holding Co.,
Limited and a director of all holding companies and subsidiaries in the Group
(except Austin Hills Land Sdn. Bhd., Austin Hills Country Resort Pte. Ltd.,
Austin Hills View Sdn. Bhd. and Austin Hills Villas Sdn. Bhd.).

He is a brother of directors, Messrs Cheong Hooi Hong, Cheong Keng Hooi

and Cheong Sim Lam and is also the father of Miss Cheong Chong Ling, a

director.
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Executive Directors continued)

Mr Cheong Keng Hooi, aged 57, has been a director of the Company and
Associated International Hotels Limited since 1983 and 1984 respectively.
He is the Chief Project Officer of Associated International Hotels Limited. He
is also a director of Tian Teck Investment Holding Co., Limited and a director
of all holding companies and subsidiaries in the Group (except Austin Hills
View Sdn. Bhd. and Austin Hills Villas Sdn. Bhd.). Mr Cheong holds a degree

of Bachelor of Business Administration from the University of Hawaii.

He is a brother of directors, Messrs Cheong Hooi Hong, Cheong Kheng Lim
and Cheong Sim Lam and is also the uncle of Miss Cheong Chong Ling, a

director.

Mr Cheong Sim Lam, aged 51, has been a director of the Company and
Associated International Hotels Limited since 1983 and 1984 respectively.
He is the Chief Investment Officer of Associated International Hotels Limited.
He is also a director of Tian Teck Investment Holding Co., Limited and a
director of all holding companies and subsidiaries in the Group. He obtained
a certificate in Accounting and General Business from Kapiolani Community

College, Hawaii and has over 30 years of working experience.

He is a brother of directors, Messrs Cheong Hooi Hong, Cheong Kheng Lim
and Cheong Keng Hooi and is also the uncle of Miss Cheong Chong Ling, a

director.

Miss Cheong Chong Ling, aged 39, joined the Group as an assistant to
directors in 1997. She was appointed as a director of the Company and
Associated International Hotels Limited effective from 1 January 2007. She is
the Chief Administration Officer of Associated International Hotels Limited.
Miss Cheong holds a degree of Bachelor of Science from the School of

Hotel Administration at Cornell University.
She is the daughter of Mr Cheong Kheng Lim, a director, and is also the

niece of directors, Messrs Cheong Hooi Hong, Cheong Keng Hooi and

Cheong Sim Lam.

Tian Teck Land Limited X & EAR A 7
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Non-executive Directors

Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles, OBE, aged 74, has been a director of the
Company and Associated International Hotels Limited since 1984 and 1985
respectively. He currently also serves on the audit committee and
remuneration committee of the Company and Associated International
Hotels Limited. Mr Sin is a solicitor and a notary public and holds a degree of
Master of Arts from the University of Cambridge. He was Chairman of Kam
Ngan Stock Exchange from 1985 to 1986 and The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited from 1987 to 1988. He was a former Chairman of the Home
Ownership Scheme Committee and the Management Committee of the
Hong Kong Housing Authority and a former member of the Urban Council

and the Executive Committee of the Housing Society.

Mr Lau Wah Sum, GBS, OBE, FCMA, FCPA, LLD, DBA, JP, aged 82, has been
a director of the Company and Associated International Hotels Limited since
1993 and 1988 respectively. He currently also serves on the audit committee
and remuneration committee of the Company and Associated International
Hotels Limited. Mr Lau was a Legislative Councillor from 1988 to 1995,
Chairman of the Court and Council of the Hong Kong Baptist University and
Chairman of the Urban Renewal Authority. He is also a member of the Court
of the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology and an independent

non-executive director of another listed company.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul, aged 54, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company and Associated International Hotels
Limited in 2004. He currently also serves on the audit committee and
remuneration committee of the Company and Associated International
Hotels Limited. Mr Chow has significant experience in accounting and
finance and has been an Associate of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales since 1983 and an Associate of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in Australia since 1988 and is a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr Chow is an independent

non-executive director of another listed company.

Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam, aged 69, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company and Associated International Hotels
Limited in 2004. He currently also serves on the audit committee and
remuneration committee of the Company and Associated International
Hotels Limited. Mr Yau has extensive legal knowledge and experience. He
qualified as a barrister in England in 1964 and practised as an advocate and
solicitor in Singapore and Malaysia, and as an advocate in the State of
Brunei before coming to Hong Kong. Mr Yau was admitted to Hong Kong

Bar in 1985 and practised as a barrister until 2001.

Mr Tse Pang Yuen, aged 64, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company in 2004. He currently also serves on the
audit committee and remuneration committee of the Company. Mr Tse is a
veteran lawyer. He is admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong, England and
Singapore and has been a managing partner of Messrs Stephen Lo & P. Y.

Tse, Solicitors since 1987.

Tian Teck Land Limited X & EAR A 7



SEEEAE

BREANE - 8958 - R—NA\ELFMAREE
YE-NAATFELERBEE - EMALRE
A ROBEEARESKERARNEE
F o N2t RIS EIR T MES BE =+ F8

FHRMELE > 535 0 NN -FMARRAF]
W B —NANBEFREEREETIZELIE -

RAEFLL  ZEBHNERTRASALRE - B8
ARWEAETEL 405 ' HEABARENELTE
iz e RELTR—AN-FEMALEE - WETE
EHE B - BT TNFR L EEAQ B M
BEB/EBRARARIMWE -

BMMEZT - &itth BHARSHEOASEE 415K
RATMEREE - HIEEBBREIAZEXS
SHELT 2 c RZZZENFMARQFR - B
TER—HBEARNEE kA EEELIERR
LA -

i BRME - BEERRLTERYBEREERR AR
BB - REAR A ESHEREEERARNERS
A PR AAR RRER -

Annual Report 09-10 ¥k

Senior Management

Miss Susan Chan So Some, aged 59, joined the Group in 1987 and has
been financial controller since 1990. Prior to joining the Group, Miss Chan
was a chief accountant of the Group’s ultimate holding company. She has

over 30 years of experience in accounting and financial management.

Mr Choi Ming Kwan, aged 53, joined the Company in 1981 and has been

the Group’s project manager since 1990.

Ms Ng Sau Fong, ACIS, ACS, aged 40, holds a degree of Bachelor of Arts
from The University of Hong Kong. Ms Ng joined the Group in 1992 as
assistant to directors and has been the company secretary of the Company

and Associated International Hotels Limited since 2004.

Ms Wong Siu Mei, CPA, ACCA, aged 41, is senior accountant of the
Company. She holds a degree of Master of Professional Accounting from
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Prior to joining the Company in 2008,
Ms Wong worked for a multinational corporation over 9 years in field of

accounting and treasury.

Note: Miss Chan, Mr Choi and Ms Ng are employed by Associated International
Hotels Limited and serve the Company pursuant to the management agreement
between the Company and Associated International Hotels Limited.
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the
Shareholders of Tian Teck Land Limited

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tian Teck Land
Limited (the “Company”) set out on pages 36 to 114, which comprise the
consolidated and Company balance sheets as at 31 March 2010, and the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a

summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the
true and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
This responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal
control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and

making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept

liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the

financial statements are free from material misstatement.

Tian Teck Land Limited X & EAR A 7
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Auditor’s Responsibility continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial

statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 March 2010
and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been

properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

29 June 2010
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Consolidated Income Statement
BE-_Z-ZF=F=1+—HILFE (B R) Forthe Year Ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2010 2009
(E#H)
(restated)
FfaE o T
Note $°000 $’000
HEEE Continuing operation
—E L Turnover 3 128,053 9,241
ARTS / SHEE R AN Cost of services/sales (41,228) 974)
EF Gross profit 86,825 8,267
HWA Other revenue 6 2,519 10,667
Hhles /(&518) 358 Other net income/(loss) 6 844 (1,374)
REYEMNE Net valuation gains/(losses)

B (Ei8)F58 on investment properties 15(a) 2,751,304 (183,097)
TR E A Administrative expenses (35,720) (41,682)
LR (BR) Profit/(loss) from operations 2,805,772 (207,219)
B E RN Finance costs 7(a) (4,325) (119)
BB EDEF (E5E) Profit/(loss) before taxation 7 2,801,447 (207,338)
PSR Income tax 10(a) (462,044) 35,308
REFELLE o REE Profit/(loss) for the year from

wmAl S (E8) continuing operation 2,339,403 (172,030)
B Discontinued operation
REHARILEE CKREE Profit/(loss) for the year from

=R (E5E) discontinued operation 5(a) 5,366 (1,788)
REERR (F58) Profit/(loss) for the year 2,344,769 (173,818)
THIALER : Attributable to:

NEESIRER Equity shareholders of the Company 11

— B — Continuing operation 1,182,074 (85,498)

— b — Discontinued operation 2,684 (894)
1,184,758 (86,392)

DR R R Minority interests

— BEEE — Continuing operation 1,157,329 (86,532)

— BRERE — Discontinued operation 2,682 (894)
1,160,011 (87,426)

REEZRR (F5i8) Profit/(loss) for the year 2,344,769 (173,818)

BRERN (HR) Earnings/(loss) per share

— BEXR#E - basic and diluted 14
HERE Continuing operation $2.49 $(0.18)
R Discontinued operation $0.01 $(0.00)

$2.50 $(0.18)

FABZEF4ENNEIBAM BRI — 3B The notes on pages 44 to 114 form part of these financial statements.
D BRAFEGAEMN R ERRER B Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company
BHNEAMIFE12 - attributable to the profit for the year are set out in note 12.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
BE-Z-ZTFE=F=+—HILFE(LUBE¥%I’R) Forthe Year Ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2010
FfaE o
Note $°000
REERR (F58) Profit/(loss) for the year 2,344,769 (173,818)
AEEHMEEWA (ZH) Other comprehensive income/(expenses)
(HRBEREER for the year (after tax and
PERER) reclassification adjustments):
BREFINGTE A A B ST R Exchange differences on translation of
FTEARER =5 financial statements of overseas
subsidiaries 30,243 (87,904)
A ERERES Available-for-sale equity securities:
D BERBESFE net movement in fair value reserve = 1,415 (2,230)
31,658 (40,134)
AEEZHEWA (XH)#EEE  Total comprehensive income/(expenses)
for the year 2,376,427 (213,952)
THA L HE( - Attributable to:
NG i Equity shareholders of the Company 1,201,297 (107,577)
D EAER R Minority interests 1,175,130 (106,375)
AEEZHEWA (XZH)EE Total comprehensive income/(expenses)
for the year 2,376,427 (213,952)

FAAEFNARNMEBAI KRN — 2D o
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The notes on pages 44 to 114 form part of these financial statements.
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BEERER

Balance Sheets
R-ZZE—ZFF=A=+—H(LUB%HIR) At31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

rEH
The Group

RAF

The Company

FRBEE Non-current assets
BEEE Fixed assets 15
— RBEE — Investment properties 9,229,784 6,104,910 159,400 137,500
— Hib% - HE - Other properties, plant and
e equipment 130,398 237,922 - .
9,360,182 6,342,832 159,400 137,500
KB A TIA#EZS  Interest in subsidiaries 16 — — 239,154 235,053
At HEREZSES  Available-for-sale equity
securities 17 2,970 1,369 - —
IRIET IR & B Deferred tax assets 10(d) 861 1,286 - —
9,364,013 6,345,487 398,554 372,553
REBEE Current assets
FE Inventories — 203 - —
FEURARSK « FT& Accounts receivable, deposits
KB and prepayments 18 53,257 10,264 369 523
U TS HL Tax recoverable 10(c) 106 58 106 58
BRI TER Pledged bank deposits 19 159,802 2,226 - —
B NMIREEEY  Cash and cash equivalents 20 409,333 450,421 6,215 5,106
622,498 463,172 6,690 5,687
DEAFEFEN  Assets of a disposal group
BEHRAGEE classified as held for sale 5(c) 291,757 - - —
914,255 463,172 6,690 5,687
RBAE Current liabilities
FETBREZN « EfbfE  Accounts payable, other
Nk EREA payables and accruals 21 204,353 207,467 1,100 1,189
El kA Deposits received 22 101,139 7,966 1,000 2,146
RHRS € %5 Provision for long service
payments 23 1,399 1,774 — —
AT S AIE Obligations under finance leases 25 31 73 = -
RHAFTIS R Current taxation 10(c) 20 86 — =
306,942 217,366 2,100 B8O
DEEFAFER  Labilities of a disposal group
REHSEE classified as held for sale 5(c) 5,509 — - —
312,451 217,366 2,100 3,335
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TEE RAF]
The Group The Company
2010
ST
$°000
REEEFE Net current assets 601,804 245,806 4,590 2,352
EEABERTE Total assets less current
=8 liabilities 9,965,817 6,591,293 403,144 374,905
kRBERE Non-current liabilities
R1TE — AKX  Bank loan - secured 24 1,105,000 568,000 - —
TENBFTH(E Government lease premiums
payable 26 2,284 2,327 - —
BB A EARYE Obligations under finance leases % 114 — — —
FEEFRIEBE Deferred tax liabilities 10(d) 1,174,652 713,624 22,125 18,460
HiE e s Other financial liabilities = 2 — —
2,282,050 1,283,953 22,125 18,460
EEFE NET ASSETS 7,683,767 5,307,340 381,019 356,445
EXR A E CAPITAL AND RESERVES
&7 Share capital 27(b) 118,683 118,683 118,683 118,683
s Reserves 3,810,043 2,608,746 262,336 237,762
3,928,726 2,727,429 381,019 356,445
DR RER Minority interests 3,755,041 2,579,911 = =
YRR TOTAL EQUITY 7,683,767 5,307,340 381,019 356,445

s

e

EER_ZE—TFRA T NARAELFA

EF
Ee

448 = FE114B KB AT B HREN—IBH

2010.

EF
B
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Cheong Hooi Hong

Director

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 29 June

Cheong Kheng Lim

Director

The notes on pages 44 to 114 form part of these financial statements.
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4 A\ ol 3L
AN = EJIELME’J%%
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BE-_Z-ZF=F=1+—HILFE (B R) Forthe Year Ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

DR RIR G
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

BA RBEE Bt PERE EBERE EAGHE REEH RRER

Share Share  Revaluation Exchange Fair value Capital Retained Minority

capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve eamnings interests

T T r T T S T 7t T

$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
200854418 At 1 April 2008 118,683 3147 47,179 6,804 2,664 72,860 1,883,669 2,835,006 2,686,286 5,521,292

REEREXHEE  Total comprehensive expenses

for the year - - - (9,387) (2,230) (9,568) (86,392) (107,577) (106,375) (213,952)

R200953A31H At 31 March 2009 and

R2009F4A 18 1 April 2009 118,683 3,147 747179 (2,589) 434 63,292 1,797,217 2,727,429 2,579,911 5,307,340
TEEZERAEE  Total comprehensive income
for the year - = = 7,524 1415 7600 1184758 1201207 1175130 2376427
R201063A31H At 31 March 2010 118,683 3,147 747,179 4941 1,849 70,892 2,982,035 3,928,726 3,755,041 7,683,767
FAEF 4B T BT IERERA—ZBD © The notes on pages 44 to 114 form part of these financial statements.
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GEEESRER
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
BE-_Z-ZTFE=F=+—HILFE(LB%%I’R) Forthe Year Ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2010
T Tr T
$000 $°000 $000
RETE Operating activities
BEAREA/ (FE) Profit/(loss) before taxation
— BEgE - Continuing operation 2,801,447 (207,338)
— iR - Discontinued operation 5,370 (1,784)
2,806,817 (209,122)
HEIER - Adjustments for:
— FISHA ~ Interest income (2,189) (10,597)
— WA - Finance costs 4,338 138
— i — Depreciation 8,910 7,939
— REWEGHEERN),/ — Net valuation (gains)/losses on
RS investment properties (2,751,304) 183,097
— EfnE R EEEER — Reversal of impairment loss in
respect of other properties (4,145) (4,008)
— R ER Mt HERLZES - Transfer from equity on disposal of
e s available-for-sale equity securities - 29
— At ERRES — Impairment loss on available-for-sale
HEEE equity securities 39 =
— REETEEBEFE — Net loss on disposal of fixed assets 6 8
— FESFHREKA — Dividend income from listed securities (31) (33)
— SNESE N (BF) /18 - Foreign exchange (gains)/losses (812 1,389
(2,745,188) 177,955
HEELBEALE Operating profit/(loss) before changes
Al (E8) in working capital 61,629 (31,167)
FERD Decrease in inventories - 1
EUERSR - 5T RIFBNMFIEN  Increase in accounts receivable,
deposits and prepayments (45,068) (6,370)
JERAERR - EAMERR Increase in accounts payable,
K ERTE other payables and accruals 23,293 835
BT 232 m Increase in deposits received 95,974 946
RHURBESEECHY ) /i (Decreass)/increase in provision
for long service payments (375) 492
ENBMBtERD Decrease in government lease
premiums payable (43) (40)
73,781 (4,136)
REEEHNE/ (FTA)K Cash generated from/(used in)
BeiE operations carried forward 135,410 (35,303)
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w3

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
BE-_Z-—ZF=F=1+—HILFE (B R) Forthe Year Ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

42

RAREEBFG/(FiA)
HRE

EfHE

— ENEENGEH

— ENEIMIER

— EfHEHE

REFBAE/ (FA)
NREFE

REED

BEBAE

BAEEBENK
(TERERTYE)

TR

REEEEEMSTE
BARHHEREEF I

[REV 95
EHEMRRIT UM

REFDAANREFE

Cash generated from/(used in)
operations brought forward

Tax paid

- Hong Kong profits tax paid

— Overseas tax paid

- PRC tax paid

Net cash generated from/(used in)

operating activities

Investing activities

Interest received

Payment for purchase of fixed assets
other than property under
redevelopment

Payment for expenditure on property
under redevelopment

Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets

Payment for purchase of
available-for-sale equity securities

Dividends received

Increase in pledged bank deposits

Net cash used in investing activities

2010

Fr
$'000

(480)
()
(224)

2,335

(13,081)

(534,436)
27

(225)
31
(157,576)

Tr
$'000

135,410

(709)

134,701

(702,925)

T
$'000

(35,303)
(702)
(10)
(185)

(897)

(36,200)
10,975
(474)
(428,106)
33
(2,226)

(419,798)
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2010

Tr Tr T Fr
$000 $°000 $000
MEEE Financing activities
ENREREHRSHNERTDH Capital element of finance lease
rentals paid (90) (120)
ENBEHEHEEMMEIES  Interest element of finance lease
rentals paid (13) (19)
BN ETHEFE Interest paid on government
lease premiums payable (117) (119)
RTEFPAEHE Proceeds from bank loan 537,000 438,000
ERFTERFIS Interest paid on bank loan (7,687) (5,470)
BENEMEERA Other borrowing costs paid (499) (1,074)

METEMENALTE Net cash generated from
financing activities 528,594 431,198

BeRESEENRD FE Net decrease in cash and
cash equivalents (39,630) (24,800)

#2009/20085F4B1H KR E  Cash and cash equivalents

RHEZEY at 1 April 2009/2008 450,421 477,493
HNEERBENTE Effect of foreign exchange

rates changes 1,023 (2,272)

R3ASI MRS REELEEY Cashand cash equivalents

at 31 March 411,814 450,421
R : Represented by:
SECE Continuing operation 20 409,333 450,421
R Discontinued operation 5(c) 2,481 =
411,814 450,421
FAEF 14BN T B AT IERERA—ZBD © The notes on pages 44 to 114 form part of these financial statements.
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B R ER TR M RE
Notes to the Financial Statements
(LL7& % %|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1

44

EFEERTHE

(@)

BREH
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(REMEPDR R EREL - AR |REK
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RARER EWRAMIRERE - U
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E o

BEGETR RGN T A TIRATHIA
RIETRCEBMBIMELER) - %5
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b
—  REMEZHENFEIE) &

— DEAVHHEESESFNE
BT A(2BME1(d) °

1

Significant Accounting Policies

(@

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited. A summary of the significant accounting

policies adopted by the Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Company. Note 2
provides information on any changes in accounting policies
resulting from initial application of these developments to the
extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current and

prior accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2010 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries

(together referred to as the “Group”).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis except that the following
assets are stated at their fair value as explained in the
accounting policies set out below:

- investment properties (see note 1(g)); and

- financial instruments classified as available-for-sale equity

securities (see note 1(d)).
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements (Continued)

Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale are stated
at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell

(see note 1(v)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which
form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other

sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future

periods.

Subsidiaries and minority interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control exists
when the Group has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its
activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights that

presently are exercisable are taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances and transactions and any unrealised profits arising
from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in the
same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that there is

no evidence of impairment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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Significant Accounting Policies continued)

()

Subsidiaries and minority interests Continued)

Minority interests represent the portion of the net assets of
subsidiaries attributable to interests that are not owned by the
Company, whether directly or indirectly through subsidiaries,
and in respect of which the Group has not agreed any
additional terms with the holders of those interests which would
result in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation in
respect of those interests that meets the definition of a financial
liability. Minority interests are presented in the consolidated
balance sheet within equity, separately from equity attributable
to the equity shareholders of the Company. Minority interests in
the results of the Group are presented on the face of the
consolidated income statement and the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income as an allocation of the total profit or
loss and total comprehensive income for the year between

minority interests and the equity shareholders of the Company.

Where losses applicable to the minority exceed the minority’s
interest in the equity of a subsidiary, the excess, and any further
losses applicable to the minority, are charged against the
Group’s interest except to the extent that the minority has a
binding obligation to, and is able to, make additional investment
to cover the losses. If the subsidiary subsequently reports
profits, the Group’s interest is allocated all such profits until the
minority’s share of losses previously absorbed by the Group

has been recovered.

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a subsidiary
is stated at cost less impairment losses (see note 1(i)), unless

the investment is classified as held for sale.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(d)

Available-for-sale equity securities
The Group’s policies for investments in equity securities, other

than investments in subsidiaries, are as follows:

The Group designates investments in equity securities as
available-for-sale equity securities. Available-for-sale equity
securities are initially stated at fair value, which is their
transaction price unless fair value can be more reliably
estimated using valuation techniques whose variables include
only data from observable markets. Cost includes attributable

transaction costs.

Subsequent to initial recognition, at each balance sheet date
the fair value of these investments is remeasured, with any
resultant gain or loss being recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the fair value
reserve. Dividend income from these investments is recognised
in profit or loss in accordance with the policy set out in note
1(q)(iii). When these investments are derecognised, the
cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from equity to profit or

loss.

When there is objective evidence that available-for-sale equity
securities are impaired, the cumulative loss that has been
recognised in the fair value reserve is reclassified to profit or
loss. The amount of the cumulative loss that is recognised in
profit or loss is the difference between the acquisition cost (net
of any principal repayment and amortisation) and current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that asset previously

recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss in respect of
available-for-sale equity securities are not reversed through
profit or loss. Any subsequent increase in the fair value of such

assets is recognised in other comprehensive income.

Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date the

Group commits to purchase/sell the investments or they expire.
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Significant Accounting Policies continued)

(e

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold interest (see note 1(g)) to earn
rental income and/or for capital appreciation. These include
land held for a currently undetermined future use and property
that is being constructed or developed for future use as

investment property.

Investment properties are stated in the balance sheet at fair
value, unless they are still in the course of construction or
development at the balance sheet date and their fair value
cannot be reliably determined at that time. Any gain or loss
arising from a change in fair value or from the retirement or
disposal of an investment property is recognised in profit or
loss. Rental income from investment properties is accounted

for as described in note 1(q)(ii).

When the Group holds a property interest under an operating
lease to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, the
interest is classified and accounted for as an investment
property on a property-by-property basis. Any such property
interest which has been classified as an investment property is
accounted for as if it were held under a finance lease (see note
1(g)), and the same accounting policies are applied to that
interest as are applied to other investment properties leased
under finance leases. Lease payments are accounted for as

described in note 1(g).

Other properties, plant and equipment
Other properties, plant and equipment are stated in the balance
sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation (see note 1(h)) and

impairment losses (see note 1(j)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of other properties, plant and equipment are determined as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in profit or loss

on the date of retirement or disposal.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Leased assets

(9)

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of

transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines that

the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset or

assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment or a

series of payments. Such a determination is made based on an

evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is

regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a

lease.

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held under
finance leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership to the Group are
classified as operating leases, with the following

exceptions:

property held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property is classified as an investment property on
a property-by-property basis and, if classified as
investment property, is accounted for as if held

under a finance lease (see note 1(g)); and

land held for own use under an operating lease,
the fair value of which cannot be measured
separately from the fair value of a building situated
thereon at the inception of the lease, is accounted
for as being held under a finance lease, unless the
building is also clearly held under an operating
lease. For these purposes, the inception of the
lease is the time that the lease was first entered
into by the Group, or taken over from the previous

lessee.
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Significant Accounting Policies continued)
Leased assets (Continued)

(9)

(i)

(i

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under
finance leases, the amounts representing the fair value of
the leased asset, or, if lower, the present value of the
minimum lease payments, of such assets are included in
fixed assets and the corresponding liabilities, net of
finance charges, are recorded as obligations under
finance leases. Depreciation is provided at rates which
write off the cost of the assets over the term of the
relevant lease or, where it is likely that the Group will
obtain ownership of the asset, the life of the asset, as set
out in note 1(h). Impairment losses are accounted for in
accordance with the accounting policy as set out in note
1(). Finance charges implicit in the lease payments are
charged to profit or loss over the period of the leases so
as to produce an approximately constant periodic rate of
charge on the remaining balance of the obligations for
each accounting period. Contingent rentals are charged
to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they

are incurred.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in

the accounting period in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease
is amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of
the lease term except where the property is classified as

an investment property (see note 1(g)).
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(h)

Depreciation
Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of other
properties, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight-line method over their estimated
useful lives as follows:
Land and buildings Over the shorter of the unexpired term
of lease and their estimated useful
lives, being no more than 40 years
after the date of completion
Furniture, fixtures and 3 -5 years
equipment
Motor vehicles 5 years

Freehold land is not depreciated.

Where parts of an item of other properties, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated on a
reasonable basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its

residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.
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Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at
each balance sheet date to identify indications that the following
assets may be impaired or an impairment loss previously

recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:
- other properties, plant and equipment; and
& investments in subsidiaries.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is

estimated.

5 Calculation of recoverable amount
The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its
fair values less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. Where an asset does not generate cash inflows
largely independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest group
of assets that generates cash inflows independently (i.e.

a cash-generating unit).

— Recognition of impairment losses
An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the
carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-generating unit
to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated to reduce the carrying
amount of the assets in the unit (or group of units) on a
pro rata basis, except that the carrying value of an asset
will not be reduced below its individual fair value less

costs to sell, or value in use, if determinable.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(i)

0)

Impairment of other assets (Continued)

= Reversals ofimpairment losses
An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount. A reversal of an impairment loss
is limited to the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment losses
are credited to profit or loss in the year in which the

reversals are recognised.

Inventories
Inventories comprise of stocks of beverages and consumables,

are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is calculated on the first-in, first-out basis and comprises
all costs of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the

inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs necessary to make

the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-
down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the
write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period

in which the reversal occurs.
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Significant Accounting Policies continued)

(k)

Accounts and other receivables

Accounts and other receivables are initially recognised at fair
value and thereafter stated at amortised cost less allowance for
impairment of bad and doubtful debts, except where the
receivables are interest-free loans made to related parties
without any fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting
would be immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated
at cost less allowance for impairment of bad and doubtful
debts.

Impairment losses of bad and doubtful debts are recognised
when there is objective evidence of impairment and are
measured as the difference between the carrying amount of the
financial asset and the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate where the effect of discounting is material.
Objective evidence of impairment includes observable data that
comes to the attention of the Group about events that have an
impact on the asset’s estimated future cash flows such as

significant financial difficulty of the debtor.

Impairment losses for accounts receivable included within
accounts and other receivables whose recovery is considered
doubtful but not remote are recorded using an allowance
account. When the Group is satisfied that recovery is remote,
the amount considered irrecoverable is written off against
accounts receivable directly and any amounts held in the
allowance account relating to that debt are reversed.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously charged to the
allowance account are reversed against the allowance account.
Other changes in the allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off directly are

recognised in profit or loss.

Accounts and other payables

Accounts and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value and subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they

are stated at cost.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(m) Cash and cash equivalents

(0)

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that
are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group’s cash management are also included as a component
of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the

consolidated cash flow statement.

Employee benefits

(i) Short term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in the
year in which the associated services are rendered by
employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred
and the effect would be material, these amounts are

stated at their present values.

(i) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised when, and only
when, the Group demonstrably commits itself to
terminate employment or to provide benefits as a result
of voluntary redundancy by having a detailed formal plan

which is without realistic possibility of withdrawal.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or
loss except to the extent that they relate to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case
the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.
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Significant Accounting Policies continued)

(0)

Income tax (Continued)

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at
the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in

respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and
taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and

unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities,
and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the asset
can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those that will arise
from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The
same criteria are adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if they relate to
the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and
are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax

loss or credit can be utilised.
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1 FESTEER®@ 1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(0) FisE®ica) (0) Income tax (Continued)
TR AREFHIBEEMNE BT The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and
EZRAREXBATEROGIIMER liabilities are the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that
T Eet B SNNEEXARE affect neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are
R IR FER (BB S R — 2D not part of a business combination), and temporary differences
BIBRAN) - LA RIREW B A R (B fE relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the
TER - JRPASEE R DA GHE R case of taxable differences, the Group controls the timing of the
ot INTTNE R SRR 00 52 S NG reversal and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in
BEEOM TS ER B A EE the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible differences,
£ BB R AR AT BE1E 15 ok B[] By = unless it is probable that they will reverse in the future.
=)
R IESEERBEENEERTE The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on
EMEAERSEELN - BEEH the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying
THEEEBEREEREE LEH amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or
TR REE « BERIBEENEE substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax
B E o assets and liabilities are not discounted.
rEEeESHAEEERREEAFT The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at each
(HEEHIEEEMNREE - MRAE balance sheet date and is reduced to the extent that it is no
B TEHA Al se 15 R S A0 FE B e A longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
PARAIFE MR S FZS - sZ IR E R A allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is
BEMNRAEEZHE  BE0RA reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
& XA RE S R Ve R R A - B taxable profits will be available.

EREEEE -

REAFIRET BER R EEBEEH Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
A - WA T o ZNEAFEE movements therein, are presented separately from each other
MBEEERSEANRR R AEEGE and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against current
TETTE 4 LAZR B 55 18 8 A 1 6 AN HA TR tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred tax
HEE  WAFEATHEIEGENE liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the legally
MR - A AT A B S AN ER AR E R enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current
HEE : tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:
— AHMEZEMERE : ~AAF - in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
o AN B A 2 IR 0E B AR A Company or the Group intends either to settle on a net
g S EFSEIRZEEMSE basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
ZAfE =% simultaneously; or
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1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(0)

Income tax (Continued)
- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation

authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

= different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current tax assets
and settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis

or realise and settle simultaneously.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Company or the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions are stated
at the present value of the expenditure expected to settle the

obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of

outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(@)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue and
costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is
recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i) Golf and recreational club and related services
Revenue arising from golf and recreational club operation
is recognised when the relevant services are provided.

(i) Rental income from operating leases
Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over the
periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Contingent rentals are recognised as income

in the accounting period in which they are earned.

(i) Dividends
Dividend income from listed investments is recognised
when the share price of the investment goes ex-
dividend.

(iv) Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the balance sheet date. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
that are stated at fair value are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was determined.
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Significant Accounting Policies continued)

()

Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Balance
sheet items are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the closing
foreign exchange rates at the balance sheet date. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the exchange

reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of
the exchange differences relating to that foreign operation is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the profit or loss

on disposal is recognised.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes
a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or
sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are

incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a
qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the asset is
being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and
activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended
use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is
suspended or ceases when substantially all the activities
necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or

sale are interrupted or complete.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Related parties

()

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is

considered to be related to the Group if:

(i)

(i)

(iv)

the party has the ability, directly or indirectly through one
or more intermediaries, to control the Group or exercise
significant influence over the Group in making financial
and operating policy decisions, or has joint control over

the Group;

the Group and the party are subject to common control;

the party is a member of key management personnel of
the Group or the Group’s parent, or a close family
member of such an individual, or is an entity under the
control, joint control or significant influence of such

individuals;

the party is a close family member of a party referred to
in (i) or is an entity under the control, joint control or

significant influence of such individuals; or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan which is for
the benefit of employees of the Group or of any entity

that is a related party of the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those family

members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced

by, that individual in their dealings with the entity.
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Significant Accounting Policies continued)

(u)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s

various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the
nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if they

share a majority of these criteria.
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1

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Non-current assets held for sale and
discontinued operation

v)

)

Non-current assets held for sale

A non-current asset (or disposal group) is classified as
held for sale if it is highly probable that its carrying
amount will be recovered through a sale transaction
rather than through continuing use and the asset (or
disposal group) is available for sale in its present
condition. A disposal group is a group of assets to be
disposed of together as a group in a single transaction,
and liabilities directly associated with those assets that

will be transferred in the transaction.

Immediately before classification as held for sale, the
measurement of the non-current assets (and all individual
assets and liabilities in a disposal group) is brought up-
to-date in accordance with the accounting policies
before the classification. Then, on initial classification as
held for sale and until disposal, the non-current assets
(except for certain assets as explained below), or
disposal groups, are recognised at the lower of their

carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

Impairment losses on initial classification as held for sale,
and on subsequent remeasurement while held for sale,
are recognised in profit or loss. As long as a non-current
asset is classified as held for sale, or is included in a
disposal group that is classified as held for sale, the non-

current asset is not depreciated or amortised.
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Significant Accounting Policies continued)
(v) Non-current assets held for sale and
discontinued operation (Continued)

(i)

Discontinued operation

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group’s
business, the operations and cash flows of which can be
clearly distinguished from the rest of the Group and
which represents a separate major line of business or
geographical area of operations, or is part of a single co-
ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of
business or geographical area of operations, or is a

subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon
disposal or when the operation meets the criteria to be
classified as held for sale (see (i) above), if earlier. It also

occurs if the operation is abandoned.

Where an operation is classified as discontinued, a single
amount is presented on the face of the income

statement, which comprises:

= the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued

operation; and

- the post-tax gain or loss recognised on the
measurement to fair value less costs to sell, or on
the disposal, of the assets or disposal group(s)

constituting the discontinued operation.
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Changes in Accounting Policies

The HKICPA has issued one new HKFRS, a number of amendments
to HKFRSs and new interpretations that are first effective for the
current accounting period of the Group and the Company. Of these,
the following developments are relevant to the Group’s financial
statements:

- HKFRS 8 “Operating segment”

- HKAS 1 (revised 2007) “Presentation of financial statements”

- Amendments to HKAS 27 “Consolidated and separate financial
statements — cost of an investment in a subsidiary, jointly
controlled entity or associate”

- Amendments to HKFRS 7 “Financial instruments: Disclosures —
improving disclosures about financial instruments”

- HKAS 23 (revised 2007) “Borrowing costs”

The amendments to HKAS 23 have had no material impact on the
Group’s financial statements as the amendments were consistent with
policies already adopted by the Group. The impact of the remainder
of these developments is as follows:

= HKFRS 8 requires segment disclosure to be based on the way
that the Group’s chief operating decision maker regards and
manages the Group, with the amounts reported for each
reportable segment being the measures reported to the
Group’s chief operating decision maker for the purposes of
assessing segment performance and making decisions about
operating matters. This contrasts with the presentation of
segment information in prior years which was based on a
disaggregation of the Group’s financial statements into
segments based on related services and on geographical
areas. The adoption of HKFRS 8 has resulted in the
presentation of segment information in a manner that is more
consistent with internal reporting provided to the Group’s most
senior executive management, but has resulted no change in
reportable segments being identified and presented (see note 4).
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2 Changes in Accounting Policies continued)

As a result of the adoption of HKAS 1 (revised 2007), details of
changes in equity during the period arising from transactions
with equity shareholders in their capacity as such have been
presented separately from all other income and expenses in a
revised consolidated statement of changes in equity. All other
items of income and expense are presented in the consolidated
income statement, if they are recognised as part of profit or
loss for the period, or otherwise in a new primary statement,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
Corresponding amounts have been restated to conform to the
new presentation. This change in presentation has no effect on
reported profit or loss, total income and expense or net assets

for any period presented.

The amendments to HKAS 27 have removed the requirement
that dividends out of pre-acquisition profits should be
recognised as a reduction in the carrying amount of the
investment in the investee, rather than as income. As a result,
as from 1 April 2009, all dividends receivable from subsidiaries,
whether out of pre- or post-acquisition profits, will be
recognised in the Company’s profit or loss and the carrying
amount of the investment in the investee will not be reduced
unless that carrying amount is assessed to be impaired as a
result of the investee declaring the dividend. In such cases, in
addition to recognising dividend income in profit or loss, the
Company would recognise an impairment loss. In accordance
with the transitional provisions in the amendment, this new
policy will be applied prospectively to any dividends receivable
in the current or future periods and previous periods have not

been restated.

As a result of the adoption of the amendments to HKFRS 7, the
financial statements include expanded disclosures in note 28(f)
about the fair value measurement of the Group’s financial
instruments, categorising these fair value measurements into a
three-level fair value hierarchy according to the extent to which
they are based on observable market data. The Group has
taken advantage of the transitional provisions set out in the
amendments to HKFRS 7, under which comparative
information for the newly required disclosures about the fair
value measurements of financial instruments has not been

provided.

Tian Teck Land Limited X & EAR A 7



LR
EARENBBRRELSEER T AL
IHE% (R MES) % AREHESEBA
WERE -

o]

FRNEEBRERNSIAEZ W ALERI S
g N

Turnover
The principal activity of the Group is property investment after the
Group’s golf and recreational club operation has been classified as

discontinued operation as set out in note 5.

The amount of each significant category of revenue recognised in

turnover during the year is as follows:

2010
Fr
$°000
BHEKgE Continuing operation
FEMZER BRI Gross rentals from investment properties 128,053 9,241
RIERE Discontinued operation

S ESZSEE S5 TN

Revenue from golf and recreational club operation 17,246 16,525
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Segment Reporting

The Group manages its businesses by segments which are organised
by business lines and geography. In a manner consistent with the way
in which information is reported internally to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment, the Group has identified two reportable
segments, namely “Property leasing” and “Golf and recreational club
operation”. The golf and recreational club operation has been
classified as discontinued operation and the related information has
been set out in note 5. The information regarding continuing operation
as presented in the consolidated income statement represents the

information of the other reportable segment, property leasing.

Geographical information presents similar information as the Group’s
revenue and results of property leasing were derived from Hong Kong
and the PRC, while the Group’s revenue and results of the golf and
recreational club operation were primarily derived from Malaysia.

Therefore, no separate geographical information is presented.
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5 Disposal Group and Discontinued

Operation

On 11 December 2009, the Directors made an announcement stating
that certain subsidiaries had entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with an independent third party to dispose of the Group’s
properties located in Malaysia mainly comprising the golf course land,
the golf resort which is situated on the golf course land, the
condominium land and the bungalow land (together referred to as the
“Properties”) at an aggregate consideration of approximately
MYR204,582,000 (equivalent to HK$472,482,000 at the balance

sheet date).

Upon completion of the disposal of the Properties, the Group’s golf
and recreational club operation will cease. Accordingly, all the assets
and liabilities related to the operation including the Properties are
classified as held for sale and the operation is therefore classified as
discontinued operation. No impairment loss was recognised on
reclassification of the assets as held for sale. Pursuant to the terms of
the agreement, the sale transaction is conditional upon and subject to
the fulfilment of certain conditions precedent. The sale transaction
was in progress at the balance sheet date and is anticipated to be

completed in or about April 2011.
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5 EBEEHSRALEKE s 5 Disposal Group and Discontinued
Operation (continued)
(@) RNEERELFERILEEN (@) The results of the discontinued operation for

EEWNT . the current and prior years are as follows:

ERARRLSRE

Golf and recreational

club operation

2010

Fx

$°000
3 Turnover 3 17,246 16,525
R7S,$H & AA Cost of services/sales (15,631) (15,338)
EFI Gross profit 1,615 1,187
HAnA Other revenue 6,599 1,003
H b 5855 Other net loss (33) ®)

EAb R E Reversal of impairment loss in respect
[E5tE 8 o] of other properties 15(a) 4,145 4,008
HEEM Selling expenses (600) (572)
THRER Administrative expenses (6,343) (7,383)
"LEERR (EE) Profit/(loss) from operations 5,383 (1,765)
BhA R Finance costs (13) (19)
BB EDEF, (B5E) Profit/(loss) before taxation 5,370 (1,784)
FR1S%L Income tax @) )
REERF (BE) Profit/(loss) for the year 5,366 (1,788)
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(b)

REEREFELIL

BERsmT :

e

(%)

KER (b)

5 Disposal Group and Discontinued
Operation (Continued)

The cash flows of the discontinued

operation for the current and prior years are

as follows:

BEARELERE

Golf and recreational

club operation

KEEBANG, (FFE)X Net cash generated from/(used in)

ReFHE operating activities 75 (198)
REEBATAMNREF5E Net cash used in investing activities (99) (161)
BB RBATANIREHHE Net cash used in financing activities (93) (139)
RERBFE Net cash flows (117) (498)

EHEAREXGEE
EERBEMT

MEE (©)

The major classes of assets and liabilities

comprising the golf and recreational club
operation are as follows:

2010
Fr
$°000
PERBFEEEN Assets of a disposal group
BEBHEEE classified as held for sale
EEEE Fixed assets 286,900 -
FE Inventories 228 -
FEUARR - AT & Accounts receivable, deposits
TEfI K and prepayments 2,147 =
FEMET1S B Tax recoverable 1 i
RERIBESEEY Cash and cash equivalents 2,481 -
291,757 -
PEBBEFEN Liabilities of a disposal group
EBHGAR classified as held for sale
FESARE - HAbER R R Accounts payable, other payables
EEtEA and accruals 2,348 -
BUWGET & Deposits received 3,160 -
HupigasE Other financial liabilities 1 =
5,509 -
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6 HWwARUWZE (EE) 6 Other Revenue and Net Income/(Loss)
R

2010 2009
(E#H)
(restated)
Fx T
$°000 $'000
Higlr A Other revenue
FMEUA Interest income 2,085 10,407
LEMEHFRIREWA Dividend income from listed securities 31 33
HAth Others 403 207
2,519 10,667
Hilzs /(&58)FE8E Other net income/(loss)
B B B & E B R F Net loss on disposal of fixed assets (12 @
A ERSESRERETE  Impairment loss on available-for-sale equity
securities (39) B
SNBSS H BRI, (1R ) YR 58 Net foreign exchange gains/(losses) 895 (1,350)
HERHHERRESM  Transfer from equity on disposal of
=k s available-for-sale equity securities - 22)
844 (1,374)
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7 BEADER,(EE) 7  Profit/(Loss) Before Taxation
BRADHAN, (B8 Bk (Gt A ) mgsE Profit/(loss) before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting) the
W o MR EeEC TR GTA)E amounts as set out below. The disclosures presented in this note
BAK E S RS o include those amounts charged/(credited) in respect of the

discontinued operation.

2010
Fr
$°000
(@) BB (a) Finance costs
FEER AT HB(E F B Interest on government lease premiums payable 117 119
REE R EAENISER Finance charges on obligations under finance
leases 13 19
RITERH B Interest on bank loan 6,536 5,883
HEEKA Other borrowing costs 379 1,004
BB AEEE Total borrowing costs 7,045 7,025
B BIABERYED Less: Borrowing costs capitalised into
EAREER A property under redevelopment * (2,707) (6,887)
4,338 138
Y : Attributable to:
FIEISE Continuing operation 4,325 119
R (Hi3E5@) Discontinued operation (note 5(a)) 13 19
4,338 138
F EERAREREF0.25%( —FFNF : % The borrowing costs have been capitalised at a rate of 0.25% (2009:
1.21%) B A1k - 1.21%) per annum.
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Profit/(Loss) Before Taxation continued)

Profit/(loss) before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting) the

amounts as set out below. The disclosures presented in this note

include those amounts charged/(credited) in respect of the

discontinued operation. (Continued)

2010
Fx
$°000
(b) EIRAE (b) Staff costs
RERFERIRET B K Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans 846 1,389
e > LEREMER] Salaries, wages and other benefits 34,808 23,857
35,654 25,246
(c) HfbEB (c) Other items
HEWMHENHSIRALLEE Gross rental income from investment properties (128,053) (9,241)
B BEERAX Less: Direct outgoings 41,228 974
(86,825) (8,267)
RETHEER : Operating lease charges:
RERENHE minimum lease payments
— WERE — property rentals 1,250 785
FEUER R CRE B 12 (Reversal of impairment losses)/impairment
e, REER losses on accounts receivable (266) 283
FERA Cost of inventories 1,624 1,451
ZEEEN S Auditor’s remuneration
— ZE R — audit services 951 901
— AR — tax services 172 134
— HbR% — other services 267 365
e Depreciation 8,910 7,939
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8 EEME
RIEE (A AR E 161 (31 = B

8 Directors’ Remuneration

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of the

ST ¢ Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows:
e 2R BAK 2010
EEHwE REVAR BIE AL ST EItRR BE
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses contributions Total
Fr Frx Frx Fr Frx
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
HITES Executive Directors
$EpE)e Cheong Hooi Hong 100 1,529 700 - 2,329
SEIBHR Cheong Kheng Lim 100 2,929* 700 18 3,747
SEME Cheong Keng Hooi 100 1,652 300 - 2,052
SEALE Cheong Sim Lam 100 1,443 300 - 1,843
SENRES Cheong Chong Ling 100 788 120 18 1,026
FHTES Non-executive Directors
e Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 100 550 - - 650
e Lau Wah Sum 100 550 = = 650
BYEHITEE Independent Non-
executive Directors
S Chow Wan Hoi, Paul 340 - - - 340
=B Yau Allen Lee-nam 340 - - - 340
s T Tse Pang Yuen 170 - - - 170
1,550 9,441 2,120 36 13,147

74
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8 EEMEw 8 Directors’ Remuneration continued)
RIE BB THEDYE 1611651 4 E= S F Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of the

SR (8) Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows: (Continued)

e 2L RIK
REMF = \TETEA STEIftK
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits  Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses  contributions
F7T
$°000
HITES Executive Directors
B Cheong Hooi Hong 100 1,609 700 - 2,409
SEIBAR Cheong Kheng Lim 100 3,017* 700 18 3,835
B Cheong Keng Hooi 100 1,916 300 - 2,316
Fipoded) Cheong Sim Lam 100 1,443 300 - 1,843
SEIRES Cheong Chong Ling 100 795 120 18 1,033
FHTES Non-executive Directors
VAR R Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 100 550 - - 650
2EEZR LLau Wah Sum 100 550 = = 650

B EHITEE Independent Non-

executive Directors

Bl==bis] Chow Wan Hoi, Paul 340 - - - 340
=5 Yau Allen Lee-nam 340 - - - 340
Bl Tse Pang Yuen 170 - - - 170
1,550 9,880 2,120 36 13,586
* EHETEEREEMNEERBREESYE X The amount excludes the benefits for the provision of residential
WER - fEtAES £4/42538000 T properties to Mr Cheong Kheng Lim with an aggregate estimated rental
(ZZZT N4 : 2,538,0007T) ° value of approximately $2,538,000 (2009: $2,538,000).
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9 'Ez'i_fﬁiﬂﬁki 9 Individuals with Highest Emoluments
CEENFER - E-EFEANSSMEN The five highest paid individuals for 2009 and 2010 are all directors of
AT AEERAT E’g%%  HE S B 5 R the Company whose emoluments are disclosed in note 8.

718 °
10 FTi5# 10 Income Tax
() HmEBERFARNAEHIE (@) Taxation in the consolidated income
5 statement represents:
2010
Frx
$000
AEHiE — FERFESH Current tax - Hong Kong profits tax
NEERIBLER Provision for the year 368 471
AHHIE — BHIRTE Current tax - Overseas and PRC
REE IR Provision for the year 227 195
IEEBIE Deferred tax
REMEAABENE Changes in fair value of investment properties 453,702 (30,389)
B EEMEEMNER Origination and reversal of temporary
differences 7,751 (5,581)
461,453 (85,970)
462,048 (85,304)
xE : Attributable to:
FEKE Continuing operation 462,044 (35,308)
Sl A EEIE) Discontinued operation (note 5(a)) 4 4
462,048 (35,304)
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EREFERERBRIZAFER M5
FEREBHE R IA16.5% ( — BTN F :
16.5% ) I 5T E < BINHE R F)
9878 LARR R B K@ A M0 IR AT B SR 5
H o pEFBER LT EE BRI LR

BRI RE o

The provision for Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at 16.5%
(2009: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for the year.
Taxation for overseas subsidiaries is charged at the appropriate
current rates of taxation ruling in the relevant countries. PRC
taxation is calculated based on the applicable rate of taxation in
accordance with the relevant tax rules and regulations of the
PRC.
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10 Income Tax (continued)

(b) FrEFHixZH (ER)FMZE (b) Reconciliation between tax expense/(credit)
AR ERFTESHEN (& and accounting profit/(loss) at applicable tax
B)EER : rates:

2010
Fx
$°000
BRE AR (E51R) Profit/(loss) before taxation 2,806,817 (209,122)
IRRREMRARRESHFE  Notional tax on profit/(loss) before taxation,
R T EBRELA calculated at the rates applicable to profits
Al (B8 maEBiE in the countries concerned 463,256 (40,406)
AR[HE S H B R T s 2 Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 1,477 7,483
ARSI 2 Tax effect of non-taxable income (2,638) (2,410)
RIERE R = ETRE Tax effect of temporary differences not
o2 recognised (149) (516)
KB EARERNFEEE Tax effect of unused tax losses not
EOpSREE- 2 recognised 102 545
ERRIESR L (ER) Actual tax expense/(credit) 462,048 (35,304)

) EEEBRATHNABHRE (c) Current taxation in the balance sheets

BA represents:

rEE
The Group

NEEEBFEH  Provision for Hong Kong

The Company

R profits tax for the year 368 471 164 270
B EHFIEH Provisional profits tax paid (471) (461) (270) (328)
(103) 10 (106) (58)
I R B A IE Overseas and PRC taxation 17 18 = !
(86) 28 (106) (58)
e PR 15751 Tax recoverable (106) (58) (106) (58)
FERTATSHL Tax payable 20 86 - =
(86) 28 (106) (58)

Ui
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LB ¥ 5|7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

10 PS5 10 Income Tax (Continued)
d ESERELEHBEBEEN (d) Deferred tax assets and liabilities
afE: recognised:
) AEE ()  The Group

BEGAAEABERRINE
ERE(AE) /B ENERE
SAAFEEBMT :

RETHEER  Deferred tax

The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities

recognised in the consolidated balance sheet and the

movements during the year are as follows:

REREE
MRE

Revaluation of
investment

and hotel

properties
T
$'000

HiBHE
nENE
SHE
Depreciation
allowances
in excess of
the related

depreciation Tax loss

T T

$'000 $'000

EEBIE : arising from:
R2008E4A1E At 1 April 2008 756,943 301 (8,936) 748,308
EEmET (Credited)/charged to

(tA)/ gk profit or loss (30,389) 194 (5,775) (35,970)
200943 A31H At 31 March 2009 726,554 495 (14,711) 712,338
A2009E4A18 At 1 April 2009 726,554 495 (14,711) 712,338
fEEmH Charged/(credited) to

ek, (Gt A) profit or loss 453,702 8,934 (1,183) 461,453
A2010%3A318 At 31 March 2010 1,180,256 9,429 (15,894) 1,173,791

78
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d EEIAELEHREBEEEHN

g8E:w

iy ARFA
BEEESBERERNELESR
HABENAERKI D A S

ELUNNE

10 Income Tax (Continued)
(d) Deferred tax assets and liabilities
recognised: (Continued)
(i)  The Company
The components of deferred tax liabilities recognised in
the balance sheet and the movements during the year

are as follows:

picbichicl
ENFE
B

Depreciation

allowances

Revaluation in excess of
of investment the related
properties
T
$°000

depreciation
Frx
$°000

RE FHIZER Deferred tax

EELEHIA ¢ arising from:
M2008%F4 A1H At 1 April 2008 18,501 717 19,218
friEme (Credited)/charged to

GPNIZES profit or loss (809) 51 (758)
200943 A31H At 31 March 2009 17,692 768 18,460
720094 A1H At 1 April 2009 17,692 768 18,460
EEEPGR Charged to profit or loss 3,614 51 3,665
M201063H31H At 31 March 2010 21,306 819 22,125

rEH
The Group

AT
The Company

HEEABER Net deferred tax assets

HRHIELERIIE  recognised on the

BEFE balance sheets (861) (1,286) - =
HEEABER Net deferred tax liabilities

HRHIELEFRIE  recognised on the

B EFE balance sheets 1,174,652 713,624 22,125 18,460

1,173,791 712,338 22,125 18,460
79
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(LL7& % %|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

10 FriHiea

11

80

(e)

RERWELERBEE !
BRI 1T EB SRR - BR
NEEHETE A NS ADARE T B i 2
BB AN R IE R A T AR SH s 18 K
AENERER - ANEEEARMKRE
5B 15 % 146,000,000 7T ( —Z T 1,
F : 170,821,00070) B 2R B 48 |F 45 &
28,222,000t (ZZEZ NF : T L)
EHBBEE  RARBIBFELET
TE(=ZZETHE :5,707,00078) KK H
#5 1 E 48 1,296,0007T ( Z TN F ¢
T HARRTE RS ENTE
BREBMNELCHEEE - BIRHRT
BiE  BLBBEENRERRL -

Y

NEIEERRELER
(E518)

NREERREGGEENBE-2E5A

ZAUN
F

\

A SRR 24,574,000 ( ZET 1
1,159,000 )3 F °

10 Income Tax (continued)

(e

Deferred tax assets not recognised:

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(o),
the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of
cumulative tax losses of $146,000,000 (2009: $170,821,000)
for continuing operation and $28,222,000 (2009: $Nil) for
discontinued operation, and depreciation in excess of the
related depreciation allowances of $Nil (2009: $5,707,000) for
continuing operation and $1,296,000 (2009: $Nil) for
discontinued operation as it is not probable that future taxable
profits against which the losses and the deductible temporary
differences can be utilised will be available in the relevant tax
jurisdiction and entity. The tax losses do not expire under

current tax legislation.

11 Profit/(Loss) Attributable to Equity
Shareholders of the Company
The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company includes a profit of $24,574,000 (2009: $1,159,000) which

has been dealt with in the financial statements of the Company.
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12 IRE 12 Dividends

@ NEEENLAIEEZRE (@) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of
e the Company attributable to the year
2010
Fx
$000
NEIR K& SZ SRS Nointerim dividend declared and paid
(20094 : #) (2009: $Ni) - -
REEBEXRAHEBAR No final dividend proposed
BETDIRARRE after the balance sheet date
(20094 : #) (2009: $Nil) - i
b) BRE—BMERFEENAT (b) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of
RERRE  WRKRFEERE the Company attributable to the previous
RZAHRE financial year, approved and paid during the
year
2010
Fx
$°000

EBN F—BBFEERARE  No final dividend in respect of the previous
f& B RN EHEE K A5 financial year, approved and paid during
(20094 : 4%) the year (2009: $Nil) - _
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(LL7& % %|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Hib2mEUA 13 Other Comprehensive Income
AL EERES Available-for-sale equity securities
2010
Frx
$°000
FRERABNAABEZS Changes in fair value recognised
during the year 1,376 (2,252)
BENSEAREEABRER Reclassification adjustments for amounts
EC transferred to profit or loss:
— N EREE R — Transfer from equity on disposal - 22
— BEEE — Impairment loss 39 i
39 22
BEHEMEERA(ZH) Net movement in the fair value reserve during
BERNFANAREEREE the year recognised in other comprehensive
BE) R income/(expenses) 1,415 (2,280)

14 BREF (FBE) —HEAK 14 Earnings/(Loss) Per Share — Basic and

e Diluted

BREANRBF (B REBAEENA The calculation of basic earnings/(loss) per share is based on the

AR 2 A R FE (L 47 A i 1l 1,184,758,000 70 consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
—ETAF : FE86,892,0007T) ¢ H of $1,184,758,000 (2009: loss of $86,392,000) represented by the

MR B 5 AE &0m B A 1,182,074,000 JT profit from continuing operation of $1,182,074,000 (2009: loss of
—ZEFTNF : E51885,498 OOOTE)&X ) $85,498,000) and the profit from discontinued operation of

BB H R 52684007 ( ZFEZ A $2,684,000 (2009: loss of $894,000), and 474,731,824 (2009:

& : [E518 894,000 7T ) » RBEBETHRD 474,731,824) shares in issue during the year. There were no potential

474,731,824 §% ( “ETNGF ¢ 474,731,824 dilutive shares in existence in 2009 and 2010.

HX) Jrﬁ —_ 7 = jli& T giiﬁ,ﬁi/a

1 A EE AR (D
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15 BElEEE 15 Fixed Assets

@@ A&£E (@) The Group
REM= it - BERRE
Investment properties Other properties, plant and equipment
HERGER
EEMR BEMx g Rty HitEE et an
Properties held
for leasing
Property under and capital Other
redevelopment  appreciation Sub-total properties  Other assets Sub-total Total
7 S S 7 1 SE S
$'000 $000 $000 $'000 $'000 $000 $000
BAS{EE : Cost or valuation:
A2009F4A1H At 1 April 2009 5,873,000 231,910 6,104,910 316,658 40,257 356,915 6,461,825
ER AR Exchange adjustments - 6,792 6,792 30,894 3,447 34,34 41,133
BEEDYE  Transfer out from property
#Ei under redevelopment (8,550,000) 8,465,500 (84,500) 84,500 - 84,500 -
BE Additions 513,600 - 513,600 - 13,236 13,236 526,836
NERFBEE  Reclassified as held for sale - (62,322) (62,322) (290,228) (31,316) (321,544) (383,866)
RE Disposals - - - - (5,156) (5,156) (5,156)
NAEEFZE  Fairvalue adjustments 2,163,400 587,904 2,751,304 - - - 2,751,304
#2010E3A31H At 31 March 2010 - 9,229,784 9,229,784 141,824 20,468 162,292 9,392,076
R&: Representing:
B%N Cost - - - 141,824 20,468 162,292 162,292
f&E—2010F  Valuation-2010 - 9,229,784 9,229,784 - - - 9,229,784
- 9,229,784 9,229,784 141,824 20,468 162,292 9,392,076
RiHE Accumulated
depreciation:
R2009F481H At 1 April 2009 - - - 81,462 37,531 118,993 118,993
SR Exchange adjustments - - - 6,967 3,257 10,224 10,224
TEERE Charge for the year - - - 7,401 1,509 8,910 8,910
RERED Written back on disposals - - - - (5,122 (5,122 (5,122
PEBEERE  Reclassified as held for sale - - - (67,059) (29,907) (96,966) (96,966)
BEBEER  Reversal ofimpaiment loss - - - (4,145) - (4,145) (4,145
#2010F3A31H At 31 March 2010 - - - 24,626 7,268 31,894 31,894
BEFE: Net book value:
2010834318 At31 March 2010 - 9,229,784 9,229,784 117,198 13,200 130,398 9,360,182
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15 BEEEE ) 15 Fixed Assets (Continued)
(a) AEBE®) (@) The Group (Continued)

RENE Hit% - BERRE
Investment properties Other properties, plant and equipment

BRAYE JE 1 bz EthEE
Properties held
for leasing
Property under and capital Other
redevelopment appreciation Sub-total properties Other assets Sub-total
T T T T T T
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

BASEE:  Costorvaluation:

R2008F4A1H At1Apri2008 5,480,000 242,127 5,722,127 365,741 47,295 403,036 6,125,163
ERAR Exchange adjustments - (7,965) (7,965) (39,101) (4,506) (43,607) (51,572)
EE Additions 573,845 = 573,845 18 456 474 574,319
RE Disposals - - - - (2,988) (2,988) (2,988)
AREEFE  Farvalueadiustments (180,845) (2,252) (183,097) - = - (183,097
7200943 A31 H At31 March2009 5,873,000 231,910 6,104,910 316,658 40,257 356,915 6,461,825
& Representing:
AR Cost - - - 316,658 40,257 356,915 356,915
fEE—2009F  Valuation-2009 5,873,000 231,910 6,104,910 - - - 6,104,910
5,873,000 231,910 6,104,910 316,658 40,257 356,915 6,461,825
RHE Accumulated
depreciation:
R2008F4A18 At1Apri2008 - - - 87,893 43,342 131,235 131,235
EAHE Exchange adjustments - - - (8,974) (4,219 (13,199) (13,199)
~EEHE Chargeforthe year = = - 6,551 1,388 7,939 7,939
B Writtenback on disposals - - - - (2,980) (2,980) (2,980)
FEFEELR  Reversalofimpairmentloss - - - (4,008) - (4,008) (4,008)
7200943 A31 H At31 March 2009 = = = 81,462 37,531 118,993 118,993
BREFE Netbook value:
7200943 A31 H At31 March 2009 5,873,000 231,910 6,104,910 235,196 2,726 237,922 6,342,832
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15 BEEEE®) 15 Fixed Assets (Continued)
(b) AT (b) The Company

REME

Investment properties

&g : Valuation:

R2009,/200844 518 At 1 April 2009/2008 137,500 142,400

DRBERAE Fair value adjustments 21,900 (4,900)

R3A31E At 31 March 159,400 137,500
(c) VIHEREFEMNDMNUT : (c) The analysis of net book value of properties

is as follows:

rEE AAT
The Group The Company

EEE In Hong Kong

— REIfE - Long leases 31,241 33,547 - -
— HhHEE - Medium-term leases 9,289,777 6,029,841 159,400 137,500
EBBIHEIN Outside Hong Kong

— KAEREYE - Freehold - 254,918 - -
— HhHEE — Medium-term leases 25,964 21,800 - =

9,346,982 6,340,106 159,400 137,500
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15 BElEEE®

86

(d)

B ESERAFEENX > HETE
BRAKBRAELR - I%Eﬁﬁ
ERIERTMXRIDHBAIHE
FEARREYE | R EAWE] °B§
—E2-ERF=FA=+—H REMHF
BREERES  FETEXRONET
BE HEIXKENETELRE
LEHHE T BN - Bt EBRER

REGHE TIERE - LN BB —IE
TEAREMETEAMA  MEFFEETF

W& T B RMIEEEYE

RZBE—ZF=F=+—H &
AMPENRENERRETE—HE
U EXRGEMBIS T EEF RS
RAR(EBTAGBEAANEMSS
BrRaE AR BEWEHZMHE
FRERLE AR AR R A O AR 2 &
BETEM - BETIAERIEZT
ERENGRMERR) - 2RMSHR
URBER  RESBEBRAT @ #F
BB ABEAMAF ABOERRE
IR FHE S W AIE IR EFERE S
HAi & E SRR ELgi=Pd

o
EE

C AEBUFTHRER
N E 7% 1 £ 155,000 7T
Ex) c REEAE
S H - AEBEUREHRERE
= R A AR {E 73 145,000 7T
DAEERmFEAST)

15 Fixed Assets continued)

(d)

Construction of ISQUARE was completed during the year and
certain floor of iISQUARE is held for the Group’s own use.
Accordingly, the valuation of the “property under
redevelopment” was transferred to “properties held for leasing
and capital appreciation” and “other properties” respectively. At
31 March 2010, investment properties comprise iISQUARE,
certain floors of Goodluck Industrial Centre, certain units of
Good Luck Industrial Building and Yi An Plaza. Other properties
comprise certain floor of ISQUARE, certain units of an industrial
property and of two commercial properties, and two residential

properties in Hong Kong.

The investment properties in Hong Kong and in the PRC were
revalued at 31 March 2010 by Vigers Appraisal & Consulting
Limited, an independent firm of professional valuers who have
among their staff Fellows of The Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors with recent experience in the location and category
of properties being valued, on a market value basis in their
existing states by reference to comparable market transactions
and where appropriate on the basis of capitalisation of the net

rental income allowing for reversionary income potential.

Other assets comprise furniture, fixtures, equipment and motor

vehicles.

During the year, additions to office equipments of the Group
financed by new finance leases were $155,000 (2009: $Nil). At
the balance sheet date, the net book value of office equipments
held under finance leases of the Group was $145,000 (2009:

net book value of motor vehicles of $Nil).
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15 BlEEE®

)

AEBUCERAERHIRENE - &
EHESVARAMFEETSE LB
HEEEENARES - BNE
RO ENEE - BHEZT—TF
A=t BLEEERBRERTE
RABWRA KA S 56,506,000 7T
(ZZZTH4F : 1,499,0007%) °

PEEREREEERBFENEL
BENEEBOFENE BRI
BiEmE -

AEBREBETARGEHEEHERR
RN SERENZEEZMNT

15 Fixed Assets continued)

(9)

The Group leases out investment properties under operating
leases. The leases run for an initial period of two to ten years,
with an option to renew the lease after that date at which time
all terms are renegotiated. Contingent rentals recognised as
income in the income statement during the year ended
31 March 2010 were $6,506,000 (2009: $1,499,000).

All properties held under operating leases that would otherwise
meet the definition of investment property are classified as

investment property.

The total future minimum lease payments under non-

cancellable operating leases are receivable as follows:

REE b N
The Group The Company
2010
Fx
$°000
1R Within 1 year 288,647 7,534 2,676 4,012
1618185 After 1 year but within
5 years 513,685 51,264 244 1,569
5 1% After 5 years 55,858 67,105 - =
858,190 125,903 2,920 5,581
B EE R E D (h) Reversal of impairment loss
2 7R 55 2R 78 28 Y 5 b ) R B B 18 The reversal of impairment loss on other properties located in
80 54,145,000 ( ZEZNF Malaysia amounting to $4,145,000 (2009: $4,008,000) was
4,008,0007T) &4 =E T B R LE —H recognised by reference to the valuation report prepared by
B3 F F(H{ERDVPC Alliance (JB) Sdn. VPC Alliance (JB) Sdn. Bhd., an independent firm of
Bhd. E—Z—ZTF = AREMNHER professional valuers in Malaysia, in March 2010.
1% T IATERR o
BEKH () Pledge of assets

REEBEREHEB  BITEZREMN
#RE{E 59,108,000,0007C ( —ZEZ A,
4 : 5,873,000,0007T) K E & & EfE
A (25M5E24)
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At the balance sheet date, fixed assets with carrying value of
$9,108,000,000 (2009: $5,873,000,000) were pledged to

secure the bank loan (see note 24).
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16 KRB QB #ER 16 Interest in Subsidiaries

ZANNE|
The Company

& (FRpA) Investments, at cost
— FE LMt — Unlisted shares 14,363 14,363
— BB LTWRG — Shares listed in Hong Kong 139,226 139,226
153,589 153,589
B REEE Less: Impairment losses (14,363) (14,363)
139,226 139,226
NG Amounts due from subsidiaries 149,655 150,852
o REEE Less: Impairment losses (49,727) (55,025)
239,154 235,053
Mk TE Market value of listed shares 2,673,131 2,088,384
R B AR RIBESLEEE 28 B Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and have
B [E E R A o no fixed repayment terms.
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16 RMIE D B ER (@)
TEIBAEBAEHBARNEE - B 25
SRRESN - PRI AR o

16 Interest in Subsidiaries continueq)

The following list contains the particulars of all the subsidiaries of the

Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

Name of company

MY R

Ry B

Place of

incorporation

and operation

ERTRAZRAFE

Particulars of issued and

paid up capital

Frib s LAl

Proportion of ownership interest

5@ BEAR
B e 2
Group’s held by
effective the
holding

Company subsidiary Principal activity

B BEBR AR B 360,000,000 FiREEI T2 50.01%  46.41% 36% HEMERRERRT
Associated International Hong Kong 360,000,000 shares of $1 each Property and
Hotels Limited investment holding
Sparkland Investments Limited &% 2B EREEIT KD 100% 100% - REEK
Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Investment holding
ERERAA B 2REREE T KR 100% - 100% F5 9% EREER
Harkam Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Property and
investment holding
Farish Limited Bt 2R EREEITZ R 100% 100% - REARB
Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Nominee services
B (BER) BRAH 00 1,600,0008% & IR E {E5 7T 2 AR 1A 100% 100% - RBEWE
Metropolitan (International) Limited  Hong Kong 1,600,000 shares of $5 each Property holding
Associated International B 2R EREE 10T 2R 50.01% - 100% HEPER
Resorts Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $10 each Investment holding
Dalwhinnie Limited B RS EE10T 2 R 50.01% = 100% REER
Hong Kong 2 shares of $10 each Investment holding
HERBRAF EE 200,000/ &R EE 1 7T.2 R 1 50.01% = 100% HAENZE
Diamond Town Limited Hong Kong 200,000 shares of $1 each Property holding
Austin Hills Land Sdn. Bhd. S Gt 21,000,002/ SR E(E 50.01% = 100% REEK
Malaysia BRI Tz B Investment holding
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16 KB R BMER ) 16 Interest in Subsidiaries continued)
TRINEAEBFENBRAAFE - BE2AE The following list contains the particulars of all the subsidiaries of the
FERAESD - PR AMRRD 1 AT EAR o (B) Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

(Continued)
Frib RS Al
Proportion of ownership interest
MR K AEEH  BHERAF HHE
R it ERTRARRAFE BERER FE ARER
Place of Group’s held by
incorporation  Particulars of issued and effective the held by
Name of company and operation  paid up capital holding Company subsidiary Principal activity
Austin Hills Country Resort Bhd. B 775 10,001,285/ BIREE 50.01% - 9998% HALLERAANR
Malaysia EXRAED T TR R RS
7S4S RAESRAGTI T Proprietor and
BER operator of a golf and
10,001,285 shares of MYR1 each recreational club
and 754 preference shares of
MYR1 each
Austin Hils Country Resort Pte.  #fI1% R BREEN KT T KD 50.01% A 100% HedHIE
Ltd. Singapore 2 shares of SGD1 each Marketing agent
Austin Hills View Sdn. Bnd. SRAED REREESRAERTITZRG  50.01% o 100% $HENFE
Malaysia 2 shares of MYR1 each Property holding
Austin Hils Vilas Sdn. Bhd. SRAER REREBRRARTITZRG  5001% o 100% FAEMZE
Malaysia 2 shares of MYR1 each Property holding
REBEZZZN\F=A=1T—HLFERN During the year ended 31 March 2008, Austin Hills Country Resort
Austin Hills Country Resort Bhd. ([ AHCRB ) Bhd. (“AHCRB”) allotted various classes of preference shares of
MERARRLENEERITE THESR Malaysian Ringgit 1 each to members of the golf and recreational club
FAE 1 TB R - MWl EE 8N g in exchange for their paid-in membership fees deposits. These
Bige o mRRHER G EBRRRHEFE shareholders have the same voting rights as the existing ordinary
EMEEE  UHEEFRASRRIKELENRN shareholders and are entitled to use the facilities within the golf and
B HE © recreational club.
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16 R B D B iR LS (a)

EEERABRANLARA(MAE=1TF
TE) Emb  SEEERANFAE AR
BXNERREELR ZHMNEELIAR
AHCRBE E &R E Al iR B ABRUKA R
FERER (L ERSKAHCRB 4 T B LR
BREZDBMNFEERE) - B fInin
IR S AR o RIVEEIRNEIH R RS
BmAEER  AeREERD -

16 Interest in Subsidiaries continueq)
During the terms or at the expiry of the preference shares which
ranges from 5 to 30 years, the holders of these shares have the option
to convert their shares into ordinary shares, by paying the difference
between the consideration of allotment of ordinary and preference
shares or such other price as the Board of Directors of AHCRB may
decide which shall entitle the holders of such conversion golf
membership of the club in perpetuity subject to any adjustments in

relation to the issued price based on the instalment scheme offered

by AHCRB. Should the preference shares not be converted into
ordinary shares at the expiry date, they will be redeemed at par value.
EEeR A LNRODBITHAEERE The Directors consider that the dilution effect of the share issued on
AHCRBFI#E G R EEE BN T EX o

the Group’s interest in AHCRB is not material.

17 A ERERES 17 Available-for-sale Equity Securities

The Group

BB LRI RE 5
(mE)

Equity securities listed in Hong Kong,
at market value 2,970 1,369

18 AR ~ Al & RFANRK

18 Accounts Receivable, Deposits and
Prepayments

%M LN

The Group The Company

FEUTBRZX Accounts receivable 42,977 6,580 180 297
T RIBARVEM Less: Allowance for bad and

(BizE18(b)) doubtful debts (note 18(b)) (30) (5,146) (30) -

42,947 1,434 150 297

HEYaEINES Deposits and prepayments 10,310 8,830 219 226

53,257 10,264 369 523
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18 FEWNERT: ~ s & N TET R @) 18 Accounts Receivable, Deposits and
Prepayments (continued)
(@) BRERDAT (@) Ageing analysis
BAgﬁ‘ETE%E,%”EI BIETE R
Al & RIERNRAR KRR (B

TD RRIEARER) BRERAMTANT ¢

The ageing analysis of accounts receivable (net of allowance for
bad and doubtful debts) which was included in accounts
receivable, deposits and prepayments as of the balance sheet

date is as follows:

rEE AT
The Group

The Company

AsenER Current 39,635 498 - 120
BH DM (E A Less than 1 month past due 2,695 174 70 102
wHI1 =31 A 1 to 3 months past due 535 231 59 50
AR A3(E A More than 3 months but
BAOR12(EA less than 12 months
past due 77 524 16 18
WHIFEB121 A More than 12 months
past due 5 7 5 7
[mEaliC Amounts past due 3,312 936 150 177
42,947 1,434 150 297

BRI RS E R R K — R H
B2 E HBETE0REEIE - s
—REFAEAEE -
BRERA—MABIOREI4KR + #H]
2HF L - AEBEEBR A
EHIE T E28(a) ©

EEBHIRAK

92

out in note 28(a).
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Debts in respect of golf and recreational club operation are
generally due after 60 days from the date of billing. For property
leasing, debts are generally due on the 1st day of each month
and 10 to 14 days are allowed for settlement or else interest will

be charged. Further details on the Group’s credit policy are set



18 FEUWNERT ~ s & N TE(TFu @) 18 Accounts Receivable, Deposits and
Prepayments continued)
(b) EWIRFURIE (b) Impairment of accounts receivable
FRREREFEEBEZSOT ¢ The movement in the specific allowance for bad and doubtful

debts during the year is as follows:

EE AT
The Group The Company

72009/20084 At 1 April 2009/2008

4H1H 5,146 1636 - -
o (&[E), #R  Impairment losses

REEE (reversed)/recognised (266) 283 30 -
SRR AIULE  Uncollectible amounts

g written off (35) ) - -

B &4 Allowance for bad and

7

BRI RR A doubtful debts included
in discontinued operation (5,423) - - -
E R =R Exchange differences 608 (764) - -
MW3H31H At 31 March 30 5,146 30 -
R-ZZE—FTF=A=+—8 ' &% At 31 March 2010, the Group’s accounts receivable of $50,000
BIBR BRI & N E R R except for those attributable to discontinued operation was
EWHERNHE ARENERRA individually determined to be impaired. At 31 March 2009, the
50/ 000R7Eth Vi I A2  1 C =E Group’s accounts receivable of $5,233,000 was individually
=+—H  AEEBEMHERERF determined to be impaired. Management assessed that only a
2w 1E B H B &R E SRR A portion of the receivables is expected to be recovered.
5,283,0007T ° B EE AW TEET Consequently, specific allowance for bad and doubtful debts of
REF S EWERFRAYE - Bt - $30,000 (2009: $5,146,000) were recognised.

B R A R BR 4 E Y45 480,000
(ZZZ N4 : 5,146,0007T) °
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18 FEUWERFX ~ FT & RFES R

(©)

94

28 RAE R BB W AR TR
AR IR AR AR E P RN R
REREB AT :

18 Accounts Receivable, Deposits and
Prepayments (continued)
(c) Accounts receivable that are not impaired
The ageing analysis of accounts receivable that are neither
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired are as

follows:

FEE AT
The Group The Company

R AR BRIE Neither past due nor impaired 39,635 498 = 120
@HIDMEA  Less than 1 month past due 2,689 174 64 102
#HA1 2 31E A 1 to 3 months past due 521 231 45 50

B EARA3(E A1E  More than 3 months but

N SPIEYE less than 12 months
past due 77 437 16 18
BHAERB12 A  More than 12 months

past due 5 7 5 I
3,292 849 130 177
42,927 1,347 130 297

NI HR 308 A R (B O FE MR 5038 T
2B HREENEREEES -

BERHIER A RENBUERRRER
EAREEGRFEBERN—RBL
BF - BEERS  REAERLSR
HAEEERL EEANE - MARE
RERADEE R 28U E - FTAEER
FRULFHEREER -

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
wide range of customers for whom there was no recent history

of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of independent customers that have a good track
record with the Group. Based on past experience, management
believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect
of these balances as there has not been a significant change in
credit quality and the balances are still considered fully

recoverable.

Tian Teck Land Limited X & EAR A 7



19 2IEBIRITEM 19 Pledged Bank Deposits

RZZE—ZTF=A=+—8 RO GREH As at 31 March 2010, bank deposits were pledged to a designated
{EIRIR - AR —RIBERITMIRITER bank to secure the bank loan (see note 24).

(2BMfzE24) -

P .
20 RERREZEY 20 Cash and Cash Equivalents
TEE PN
The Group The Company

2010

Fr

$000
SRITEEFER Deposits with banks 400,243 446,103 5,222 4,279
$R1TEZRNIKRE  Cash at bank and in hand 9,090 4,318 993 827
409,333 450,421 6,215 5,106
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21 E{ERY - HMEN K 21 Accounts Payable, Other Payables and

FEstE R Accruals

FiBEREMNER - HMEMZKKESE A All of the accounts payable, other payables and accruals (2009:
—EENF: RFTEEEMNRBRE except for $43,040,000 mainly represented retention monies payable)

43,040,0007T ) TEET A —FEAE(T ° is expected to be settled within one year.

REEBRBEXRGEEH  BEEEMNER - H The ageing analysis of accounts payable which was included in

T R FEET B BB AR FE (T BR SR AVBR R accounts payable, other payables and accruals as of the balance

M : sheet date is as follows:

EE AT
The Group The Company

118 A A=k Due within 1 month or

FEBMNEFEE  ondemand - 350 - <
1E &8 Due after 1 month but

3fE A A2 EA within 3 months = 495 - i
3EA%&E Due after 3 months but

61 A M| H within 6 months - 253 = =
6fE A1&18 Due after 6 months but

1218 A M| HA within 12 months - L _ _
1218 A 1& 5 23 Due after 12 months - 28 - =
FEfTER %R Total accounts payable = 1,126 = i
EETIZHESTER Accruals and retention monies

NMIERRE KA  payable for redevelopment work 171,059 195,873 - =
HE R Other payables and accruals

EETE A 33,294 10,468 1,100 1,189

204,353 207,467 1,100 1,189

96 Tian Teck Land Limited X EibEHR QA



22 BWEI€ 22 Deposits Received

BUYEIE B AHEERS @ WEATEN— Deposits received mainly represent rental deposits and are not
FRELT © expected to be settled within one year.
23 RERB %A 23 Provision for Long Service Payments

rEE

The Group

e

$000

#R2009F 4 H1H At 1 April 2009 1,774

IR [ P O] 24 Provision written back for the year (375)

201063 H31H At 31 March 2010 1,399
BEEBEBIES]) - NEB AL TR Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the Group is obliged
FFENA LM E TIREEAERR - ELIFR to make lump sum payments on cessation of employment in certain
THEER—2NR - BNSRBIZEHET circumstances to employees who have completed at least five years
=ROFHE RRBER - BEEAERRK of services with the Group. The amount payable is dependent on the
FrEINBAEEEHAEREETE - A5 employees’ final salary and years of service, and is reduced by
B2 B T8 BB EE AT MR ER entitlements accrued under the Group’s retirement plan that is
R o attributable to contributions made by the Group. The Group does not

set aside any assets to fund any remaining obligations.
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24

98

TEF—BIRA
R-ZT-TE=F=+—H  RBITEZNE
FERE

24 Bank Loan — Secured

At 31 March 2010, the bank loan was repayable as follows:

AEE
The Group

Fx

$°000
1F&E2FR After 1 year but within 2 years 1,105,000 =
2F&ESFA After 2 years but within 5 years - 568,000
1,105,000 568,000

%:%%ﬁ%+ﬂ:+a’$“ﬁmw
B — S\ BB EREE AR A E—HE
R 17 5] L — 19 & £ 1,200,000,000 JT A9
MEWRZE - ZBRITHERA—HEBIENH
F15@QFMN —E—FF=A=1—H
AR M {8 9,108,000,000 7t ( = E T N F
5,873,000,0007T) K& TREEEERFE —
BRI R BRI ERANS
TEENZE - ZHRCHNERERER -
R-_ZB-—FFE=ZF=+—H EHHDH
{E E%85£1,105,000,000 7T ( ZEZ N4 :
568,000,0007T) °

ZHEBARMIRTREBERITEZNEA
AINE THRaEEREREL RGNS E
FREEA - WREKR B ARNE—E /R EK
F oo (M B A RERZE R - AlBRE
AR EEEIRNAEERE - A5EETEH
ERRREFEELTEHE R —ZTFK
ZEThF=A=1T—8  ZMBLARLE
ERAEMEREER@ENRE -

On 20 October 2006, the Company’s subsidiary, Associated
International Hotels Limited, entered into a facility agreement with a
bank for banking facilities of up to $1,200,000,000. The banking
facilities were secured by a debenture incorporating a first fixed legal
charge over certain fixed assets referred to in note 15(a) with carrying
value of $9,108,000,000 as at 31 March 2010 (2009: $5,873,000,000)
and a first floating charge over certain assets placed on or used in the
redevelopment. The facilities were utilised to the extent of

$1,105,000,000 as at 31 March 2010 (2009: $568,000,000).

The subsidiary’s banking facilities are subject to the fulfilment of
covenants relating to certain of the subsidiary’s consolidated balance
sheet ratios and maintenance of capital at certain required levels. If
the subsidiary were to breach the covenants, the drawn down facilities
would become payable on demand. The Group regularly monitors its
compliance with these covenants. As at 31 March 2010 and 2009,
none of the covenants relating to drawn down facilities had been

breached.

Tian Teck Land Limited X & EAR A 7



25 FEHEAIE 25 Obligations under Finance Leases

RZZT—ZTF=A=1+—0  rX5£EHEE At 31 March 2010, the Group had obligations under finance leases
THEASEREFEWT ¢ repayable as follows:
2010
RERE REHE REHE
NRERE NRBEEH R
Present value of Present value of
the minimum Total minimum the minimum Total minimum

lease payments  lease payments lease payments lease payments

Tr T Tt Tt
$°000 $°000 $°000 $'000

1R Within 1 year 31 31
11 E2F R After 1 year but within 2 years 31 31 L _
PES I ERES After 2 years but within 5 years 83 83 A =
114 114 - A
145 145 73 74

o BERE Less : Total future interest
Susfict ¢ expenses - ()

TEEEWIEE  Present value of
lease obligations 145 73

26 BENBTHE 26 Government Lease Premiums Payable

3|

The Group

e B HOE Government lease premiums payable 2,327 2,367
W BIEREMERK Less: Amount due within one year
Hib R R R ET &R included in accounts payable,
V1 A RIS BRI other payables and accruals 43) (40)
2,284 2,327
FES R AT H BT BRI AR (BB ARTE AR EF Interest on government lease premiums payable is chargeable at a
FEREE(ZEZNF : 5E)5HE - fixed rate of 5% (2009: 5%) per annum on the outstanding balance.
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27 BERR#E 27 Capitaland Reserves
(a) FERMERIPDEE (@) Movementsin components of equity
REEERE =m0 B E 5 A Ef The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of
EHRERHLEER - JEREE each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set out
S EER - NARRENEF KR in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details of
18 B 7 2 4B AKX 3T 5 9 S B 5 1B 41| & 4n the changes in the Company’s individual components of equity
T between the beginning and the end of the year are set out
below:
PIN/NG] The Company
& IR1DRE REEH
Share Share Retained
capital premium earnings
T T T
$°000 $°000 $°000
P2008F4 H1H At 1 April 2008 118,683 3,147 233,456 355,286
KEEE2MH Total comprehensive income
ON 5 for the year - - 1,159 1,159
20094 At 31 March 2009 and
3B31AR 1 April 2009
2009F4 818 118,683 3,147 234,615 356,445
KEEE2MH Total comprehensive income
N L for the year = - 24,574 24,574
20104 At 31 March 2010
3H31H 118,683 3,147 259,189 381,019

100 Tian Teck Land Limited X EibEHR QA



27 EXRi#Ew 27 Capital and Reserves continued)
Share capital

(b) KA (b)

2010
Fx
$’000
JEIE Authorised:
600,000,0000% 600,000,000 shares
SRMEE0.25T of $0.25 each 150,000 150,000
ERITRHRE : Issued and fully paid:
474,731,8241% 474,731,824 shares
FIMEE0.257T of $0.25 each 118,683 118,683

BB ABRERTEE KK
B WAEARARRASG LHHE K
BOR—F - YRARFNFEBRE
E - FTAROBZEEREFER -

(c) fEBHMEEMAZE (©
B EENREEREB(ATIE
Y 48BIEFTE 8 -

EfFEREAEFEERRNEE
MESBELR - RBEEERREE
&% o MENRERBYEEL M
HENERRGERERREE AR
BAl o th#tmE TR DIKE o

AEBEDRILIVERE - WIRHTEE
1(r) P8 Y R R BB SN & B 7% ik
FREEHVER ZR S HRRMEIE °

Annual Report 09-10 ¥k

The holders of shares are entitled to receive dividends as
declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per
share at meetings of the Company. All shares rank equally with

regard to the Company’s residual assets.

Nature and purpose of reserves
The application of the share premium account is governed by

section 48B of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The revaluation reserve represents hotel properties revaluation
surpluses recognised in prior years. The hotel has been
redeveloped into ISQUARE. Upon the retirement or disposal of
the properties, any related revaluation surplus is transferred
from the revaluation reserve to retained earnings. The reserve is

non-distributable.

The exchange reserve has been set up and is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies adopted for the foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial

statements of foreign operations in note 1(r).
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27 EXRRFEEw®

102

(©

EENEENAZR®)

AR BEGEDSNEERBEREE
B AR HE RSB ENRAE
EEBEFE - WIRM 1 FE
VEHEERE -

EAREREE - RNBARETET
BRIEER T EARBIRMEAEER
1 5% MY 188 2 ]IS AT 20 K B e 0% 46 0
HERRE °

Al Dk
R-ZE—ZFFE=F=+—H - B
EBCREERI B 79BIEEERTE A
A 2R TR B R a8 AR R HY 7 8 48
%8 /5151,365,000 T ( = EZFNF
145,077,0007T)

BEREHE
AEBEREARNEE R ORREA
SEFEEENES RS HE

WEANRT E B K P AR TR O AR TS B
BARNAERABSRENTT N -
HEERERRRER@E - W REA
HEREA LA o

ANEEE R SR B AL
ERAEA AR EEKEEF
BRI ARER BIRAF - EIREE AR
HRMEZMRERSGEE - WAR
KESRESMARERERE - HE
—EEFER_BFTNF=A=1—
HIEFE @ AEEREEREERT

& .

AN EE B 4 B R SR B 7S B AT TR
% BRBEHEABELERIBSNR
EHRORERHEERERE - it
= ASEBEARATEABEL X ARTT
RERMGAEBEEBBERIRA
SR N T EF=A=1+—
C REBERNERBELERF14.4%
(ZZEZTNFE 107%) » METE
NBEEBREFERKIELEEN
R 1777 % & 3R & # 533,384,000 7T
(ZZZTNEF : 115,353,0007T) °

fel

P2

=7

m # W oif
Br Sy

27 Capital and Reserves continued)

(©

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net change in
the fair value of available-for-sale equity securities held at the
balance sheet date and is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies in note 1(d).

The capital reserve represents the net increase in the Group’s
share of the undistributable reserve in a subsidiary pursuant to
the issuance of various classes of preference shares by a
subsidiary to preference shareholders.

Distributability of reserves

At 31 March 2010, the aggregate amount of reserves available
for distribution to equity shareholders of the Company, as
calculated under the provisions of section 79B of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, was $151,365,000 (2009:
$145,077,000).

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for equity shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders, by leasing properties and
pricing services commensurately with the level of risk and by
securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group regularly reviews and manages its capital structure
to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder returns
that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position,
and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of
changes in economic conditions. The Group’s overall strategy
remained unchanged during the years ended 31 March 2010
and 2009.

The Group monitors its capital structure by reviewing its gearing
ratio and cash flow requirements, taking into account its future
financial obligations and commitments. For this purpose, the
Group defines gearing ratio as total bank loan over total equity
as shown in the consolidated balance sheet. As at 31 March
2010, the Group’s gearing ratio was 14.4% (2009: 10.7%) with
total bank loan exceeding bank deposits and cash from both
continuing and discontinued operations of $533,384,000 (2009:
$115,353,000).

Tian Teck Land Limited X & EAR A 7



28 BEBREERQAEE

AEEEELREBEETLRER  RE
BE  MEMEKRR - ARETEHEE
ETESREMELNERERER

BREARKEPIAENRR - LRAEERNL
% 5B IR B O U 75 R B R R AN 1B
EEAIT e

(@ EERMKE
AEENEERREZREEKE
Ao ERECDEHREERSE WA
ETESRFTASZAEERRE -

HEWEERME - B Z KR
BA—ELBEENTF A5EE
ER AR BT - BIMG &R
BB EETHRENALE KR E A
WEEREN  TeEREPHEER
INERPEEFTERNKEIRE - 2l
KR ESHEBHRR—RERBER
2 BEEFT60RE R - MMEREE
BRRR—BESAE AR - B
BERA—MBIOREI4KR  BE
BURF B - A RIS RE R FE 0K
WERANRLEESERF  UEs
RSN T AR RERN S B HREUE
B7TE) - ERYIEREEBEIIX
HEBHA - REIEEEENBRTH
HIRBUEZTE) - AEERMEFE]
& (2B 3E22) 1E A MUK BR A 47

o
A °©

AEEVTESEREERARETNE
T DRFEARHEM M - ANEB A
XHNEERRLRABERBERTE
e REENREE(SNRRIESE
) - AEEWERERATBAKER
ARRAEEERBEEFER o
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28 Financial Risk Management and
Fair Values
Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises in
the normal course of the Group’s business. The Group is also

exposed to equity price risk arising from its equity investments.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to manage

these risks are described below.

(@) Credit risk
The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to accounts
receivable. Management has a credit policy in place and the

exposure to this credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of accounts receivable, individual credit evaluations
are performed on all customers requiring credit over a certain
amount. These evaluations focus on the customer’s past
history of making payments when due and current ability to
pay, and take into account information specific to the customer
as well as pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. Debts in respect of golf and recreational
club operation are generally due after 60 days from the date
of billing. For property leasing, debts are generally due on the
1st day of each month and 10 to 14 days are allowed for
settlement or else interest will be charged. Accounts for
members of the golf and recreational club with balances that
are 90 days past due are suspended and legal action will be
taken against defaulting members as may be appropriate. For
debtors of property leasing, legal action will be taken against
past due debtors whenever the situation is appropriate. The
Group obtains deposits from customers (see note 22) as

collateral over accounts receivable.

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk. The
maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account of any
collateral held is represented by the carrying amount of each
financial asset in the balance sheet after deducting any
impairment allowance. The Group does not provide any other
guarantees which would expose the Group or the Company to

credit risk.
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28 BIEEMEERAEBREE

104

(@)

FEERRE )

AN EEEREKERTE SR
RAENEMERE SRR HE
18 °

RBE SRR
AEBENBKEEHER SR MIA
HnBESHR  LARBTETER
5% ERERRMOREREE - [
RERITAGRIRERANEER - A
R AMB RS REESFH

TRHANFREERARRZINTES
BREEREERBRAEERNHRE
WBNHIFIR - ZERIRE A AR
REeRnE (BREAAKHMESIRNE
EBEBERAERNERNE(MEF
B ENFN SN RAKEMAR
FAKRFE XN AEM SR :

28 Financial Risk Management and
Fair Values continued)

(@)

Credit risk (Continued)
Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from accounts receivable are set

out in note 18.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and expected
liquidity requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of
cash and an adequate amount of committed banking facilities

to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The following table details the remaining contractual maturities
at the balance sheet date of the Group’s and the Company’s
non-derivative financial liabilities, which are based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating,
based on rates current at the balance sheet date) and the

earliest date the Group and the Company can be required to

pay:

Tian Teck Land Limited X & EAR A 7



28 BIREBEERAAEE ) 28 Financial Risk Management and
Fair Values (Continued)
(b) RBEERER(E) (b) Liquidity risk Continued)

REE

The Group

2010
EERRR  AOANRR 15/ a1 BiaoF

BEE REREAE  BEBAR  (ORNF BoRoF i85

Balance Total More than More than

sheet  contractual Within 1 year but 2 years but
carrying  undiscounted 1yearor less than less than More than
amount cash flow on demand 2 years 5years 5 years
iz i it iz i it
$000 $000 $1000 $000 §000 $1000

EfiRa Accounts payabe,

AR ke B other payables and accruals 204,353 204,353 204,353 = = o
ghETe Deposits received 101,139 101,189 4492 2614 9,128 1,905
RERERR Finance lease liablties 145 145 3 3 8 -
B —BHER Bank loan - secured 1,105,000 1,114,641 6,393 1,108,248 - -
ERBRLE Government lease premiums payable 2,284 4,290 159 159 477 3,495

1,412,921 1,424,568 215,428 1,111,082 92,688 5,400

B
Balance Total More than

sheet contractual Within 1 year but 2 years but
camying  undiscounted 1 year or less than less than More than
amount cash flow on demand PATGE 5 years 5 years
T v T T o T
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $1000

ERE Accounts payable,

R RE 2R other payables and accruals 207467 207,467 164,427 43016 - %
BkETe Deposits received 7,966 7966 4,655 1,129 an 1,906
RARERR Finance lease liabiiies 73 74 74 - = -
FES — A Bank loan - secured 568,000 579,635 4714 4714 570,207 -
ERBRLE Government lease premiums payable 2307 4,449 159 159 4717 3,654
AtofkaE Other financial liabilties 9 9 - - 1 1

785,83 799,593 174029 49018 570,962 5,584
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28 BIREMREERAAEE 28 Financial Risk Management and

Fair Values continued)

(b) REEZERE(E) (b) Liquidity risk Continued)
Vi N/NE| The Company
2010
BEAER BRRTR 1ERH BiB1FE
IREE HEeREEN BREBAR DR2F
Balance Total More than
sheet contractual Within 1 year but
carrying undiscounted 1 year or less than
amount cash flow on demand 2 years
Fr Fr Fr Fr
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
JERTBRFN - Accounts payable,
HinfERF KL other payables and accruals
et & 1,100 1,100 1,100 -
G EES Deposits received 1,000 1,000 900 100
2,100 2,100 2,000 100

BEARE
REE
Balance

sheet

carrying

amount
Tt
$'000

contractual
undiscounted
cash flow
Tt

$'000

1F R
B RS

Within

1 year or
on demand
Tt

$'000

HBiB1FE
DI
More than
1 year but
less than
2 years
Tt
$'000

FERTBRFR Accounts payable,
HAfERF KL other payables and accruals
B ER 1,189 1,189 1,189 -
2ETE Deposits received 2,146 2,146 1,508 638
3,885 35835 2,697 638
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28 BIEMEERAAEME 28 Financial Risk Management and
Fair Values continueq)

(c) F=E P (c) Interest rate risk
AEEMNAEREREZRE RHAE The Group’s interest rate risk primarily arises from long-term
B ZEEEFEASEAERAZRSR borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable rates expose the
EMNERR - AEBEEIEEERNF Group to cash flow interest rate risk. The Group’s interest rate
R ()Fradt o profile as monitored by management is set out in () below.
()  FI=HR () Interest rate profile
TRFINEEEEREHEH The following table details the interest rate profile of the
AEBNEEFR R Group’s borrowings at the balance sheet date:
REE
The Group
2009
BEERAE% B FE%
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
% %
EEMEE: Fixed rate borrowings:
RIEFAEBE  Finance lease liabilities - 145 2.35 73
JERTEAFHE  Government lease
premiums payable 5.00 2,284 5.00 2,327
2,429 2,400
FEEE: Variable rate borrowings:
SRITER Bank loan - secured
— B 0.58 1,105,000 0.83 568,000
BEBE Total borrowings 1,107,429 570,400
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108

BB EREE

()

SIE R A EBEE

) 2= e ez (8

(i)

BRKE DT

R=ZE—ZFF=A=1+—H8"
HetEFELE LA TR25
—TTNE 25)E% 0 ik
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28 Financial Risk Management and
Fair Values continued)
Interest rate risk (Continued)

(©

(i)

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 March 2010, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 25 (2009: 25) basis points in
interest rates, with all other variables held constant,
would have decreased/increased the Group’s profit after
tax and retained profits by approximately $2,763,000
(2009: $1,420,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’s profit after tax (and retained
profits) that would arise assuming that the change in
interest rates had occurred at the balance sheet date. In
respect of the exposure to cash flow interest rate risk
arising from floating rate non-derivative instruments held
by the Group at the balance sheet date, the impact on
the Group’s profit after tax (and retained profits) is
estimated as an annualised impact on interest expense
of such a change in interest rates. The analysis is

performed on the same basis for 2009.
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28 Financial Risk Management and

Fair Values continueq)

(d) Currencyrisk
Foreign currency risk arises when recognised assets and
liabilities are denominated in a currency that is not the Group’s
functional currency. The Group does not hedge its financial
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies in the
view that the Group’s foreign currency risk exposure primarily
refers to the fixed deposits denominated in United States
Dollars (“USD”).

(i) Exposure to currency risk
The following table details the Group’s exposure at the
balance sheet date to currency risk arising from

recognised assets denominated in USD:

EE
The Group

2010 2009
EnT ETTT
USD’000 USD’000

Accounts receivable, deposits and

prepayments 5 27
ReRIREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 49,521 55153
A | [ A Y E AR Overall net exposure 49,526 55,540

(i) BUREDWT
HABEEZ TR  AEE
R 7R A B B AR B 2E T AR R
BINE R PR TEERI N E K o
b RZZE—ZTFM=_FTAh
FA I TRRED T ©
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(i) Sensitivity analysis
In the light of the Hong Kong dollar peg, the foreign
currency risk associated with the USD exposure is not
expected to be material to the Group and the Company.
Therefore, no sensitivity analysis is performed in 2010

and 2009.
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28 Financial Risk Management and
Fair Values continued)

C)

Equity price risk
The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising from
equity investments classified as available-for-sale equity

securities (see note 1(d)).

The Group’s listed investments are listed on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong. Listed investments held in the
available-for-sale portfolio have been chosen based on their
long term growth potential and are monitored regularly for

performance against expectation.

Based on the sensitivity analysis performed at 31 March 2010,
it is estimated that an increase/decrease of 35% (2009: 35%) in
the market value of the Group’s listed investments, with all
other variables held constant, would not affect the Group’s
profit unless there are impairments. The Group’s total equity
would increase/decrease by $1,039,000 (2009: $479,000). The

analysis is performed on the same basis for 2009.
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Fair Values continueq)

f 2DREE (f)  Fair values
RIECE B Y5 RS 2RI B 75 /S The amendments to HKFRS 7 for financial instruments require
AIEREm I AN AR EEN=EAR disclosures relating to fair value measurements of financial
“ErnEBEBHRETIHE  Hi instruments across three levels of a “fair value hierarchy”. The

BHESHTAENAABERREYHE fair value of each financial instrument is categorised in its

PABEGFEMNSBRERRILAE entirety based on the lowest level of input that is significant to

8 A BURH S (K E AETTERE D - that fair value measurement. The levels are defined as follows:

BERNERLOT

— FER(ESER) : %HERH - Level 1 (highest level): fair values measured using quoted
SR TEEERTEHNHRE (K prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical financial
LR FTERAEE instruments

— FEf - RBENUERTIEAERE - Level 2: fair values measured using quoted prices in
TERTISHRE - KB IRE active markets for similar financial instruments, or using
BEEEEREAERMSH valuation techniques in which all significant inputs are
BHFTA E R AR 2 HE directly or indirectly based on observable market data
RiTstE A EE

— FZERKHEEER) : HRAR - Level 3 (lowest level): fair values measured using
B FE LA R B R T IS EUIE R (T valuation techniques in which any significant input is not
A B K A BB B0 [ (BT 5T based on observable market data

EAREE

RIE—EF=A=+—H &X&EH At 31 March 2010, the only financial instruments of the Group

BA Mﬁ BESRME—IEem T A carried at fair value were available-for-sale equity securities of

BB R A A 4 SR $2,970,000 listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong (see

& $%2,970,0007C (2B E17) © 3% note 17). These instruments fall into Level 1 of the fair value

BHTABR AR BEEBRNE— hierarchy described above.

o
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29 Employee Retirement Benefits

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the MPF
scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined
contribution retirement plan administrated by independent trustees.
Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
$20,000. In addition to the mandatory contribution, the Group makes
voluntary contribution at 5% of the employees’ monthly relevant
income in excess of $20,000, subject to a maximum monthly income
of $30,000. Contributions to the plan vest immediately. The staff costs
in respect of staff employed by DTZ for building and property
management of ISQUARE are reflected in the Group’s income

statement.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in Malaysia and Singapore
are members of the Employee Provident Fund and the Central
Provident Fund (“the funds”) operated by the respective local
government. The relevant subsidiaries are required to contribute to the
funds at rates ranging from 7.5% to 14.5% based on the salaries of
the employees. The only obligation of the Group to the above funds is

the required contributions at the applicable rate.

During the year, no forfeited contributions (2009: $15,000) was utilised
to reduce the contributions payable for the year. No unutilised forfeited
contributions had yet to be applied by the Group at 31 March 2010
and 2009.
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30 AIE 30 Commitments

(a)

(b)

R-E-—ZEF=R=+—H (a) Capital commitments outstanding at
RMEN T X AREERRA 31 March 2010 not provided for in the
BRIENERNFENT : financial statements were as follows:

AEE
The Group

REIES] Contracted for 6,339 512,357
Eé E—ZEF=ZH=+— (b) At 31 March 2010, the total future minimum
» ARIE T AT 7 BR AV ) SE AR lease payments under non-cancellable
E* H‘E’E H&REANREHE operating leases of properties are payable as

EMBEAZUT : follows:

EE
The Group

15 R Within 1 year 361 1,250
1B ESFERA After 1 year but within 5 years = 361
361 1,611
AEBRALEHEHR — WA The Group is the lessee in respect of a property held under
A EHERHME - ZHETE operating lease. The lease runs for a period of two years. The
SHAES ° lease does not include contingent rentals.
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32

33

Comparative Figures

As a result of the application of HKAS 1 (revised 2007) “Presentation
of financial statements”, certain comparative figures have been
adjusted to conform to current year’s presentation and to provide
comparative amounts in respect of items disclosed for the first time in

2010. Further details of these developments are disclosed in note 2.

Certain comparative figures have also been adjusted to conform to
the disclosure requirement in respect of the discontinued operation
set out in note 5 to the financial statements. In addition, the
comparative consolidated income statement has been restated as if
the operation discontinued during the current year had been

discontinued at the beginning of the comparative period.

Immediate Parent and Ultimate Controlling
Party

At 31 March 2010, the Directors consider the immediate parent and
ultimate controlling party of the Group to be Tian Teck Investment
Holding Co., Limited, which is incorporated in Hong Kong. This entity

does not produce financial statements available for public use.

Possible Impact of Amendments, New
Standards and Interpretations Issued but
not yet effective for the Year Ended

31 March2010

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has
issued a number of amendments, new standards and interpretations
which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 March 2010 and

which have not been adopted in these financial statements.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments, new standards and new interpretations
is expected to be in the period of initial application. So far it has
concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant

impact on the Group’s results of operations and financial position.
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AFPHERE

Five Year Financial Summary
(LA ¥5I|7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

E 5 Results
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
(E#]) (E8) (E8) (E%)
(restated) (restated) (restated) (restated)
T T T T T
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $°000
=] Turnover
— B - Continuing operation 83,602 7,950 8,777 9,241 128,053
e - Discontinued operation 269,254 18,326 17,497 16,525 17,246
352,856 26,276 26,274 25,766 145,299
BERT (1) Profit/(loss) from operations 298,602 660,153 473,638 (207,219) 2,805,772
BMEKAR Finance costs (124) (122) (121) (119) (4,325)
BRBLADER (F5E) Profit/(loss) before taxation 298,478 660,031 473,517 (207,338) 2,801,447
FifEH Income tax (57,102) (111,532) (50,877) 35,308 (462,044)
REFELE ZARFEE  Profit/(loss) for the year from
B (EE) continuing operation 241,376 548,499 422,640 (172,030) 2,339,403
REKIEKEKREE  Profit/(loss) for the year from
wFl/ (FE) discontinued operation 64,516 (4,626) (1,730) (1,788) 5,366
REERF(BR) Profit/(loss) for the year 305,892 543,873 420,910 (173,818) 2,344,769
TH AL : Attributable to:
NRIERRARR Equity shareholder of the Company 162,383 278,694 221,226 (86,392) 1,184,758
DY S Minority interests 143,509 265,179 199,684 (87,426) 1,160,011
305,892 543,873 420,910 (173,818) 2,344,769
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Five Year Financial Summary
(LL7& % %|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

EEREE Assets and Liabilities
2010
Fr
$°000
TEE Fixed assets 4,627,853 5,364,683 5,998,928 6,342,832 9,360,182
HithBEARE Other investments in securities/

A SRR S available-for-sale equity securities 26,091 2,037 3,621 1,369 2,970
REIERIIEE = Deferred tax assets 1,432 1,501 1,565 1,286 861
nBEEFE Net current assets 500,621 435,653 404,490 245,806 601,804

5,155,997 5,803,874 6,403,604 6,591,293 9,965,817
RITER — HIEH Bank loan - secured - - (130,000) (568,000) (1,105,000)
ENBTILE Government lease premiums payable (2,443) (2,408) (2,367) (2,327) (2,284)
AR ERE Obligations under finance leases (575) (188) (70) h (114)
EXFARE Deferred tax liabilities (606,396) (717,295) (749,873) (713,624)  (1,174,652)
Hibg s a & Other financial liabilities (1) ) @ @) -
EERE NET ASSETS 4,546,582 5,083,983 5,521,292 5,307,340 7,683,767
fRZAR Share capital 118,683 118,683 118,683 118,683 118,683
s Reserves 2,234,590 2,497,706 2,716,323 2,608,746 3,810,043

2,353,273 2,616,389 2,835,006 2,727,429 3,928,726
DHBRRER Minority interests 2,193,309 2,467,594 2,686,286 2,579,911 3,755,041
ERBE TOTAL EQUITY 4,546,582 5,083,983 5,521,292 5,307,340 7,683,767

116 Tian Teck Land Limited X EibEHR QA



i SQUARE

@ This report is printed on environmentally friendly paper



	封面
	目錄
	公司資料
	主席報告書
	物業概覽
	企業管治報告
	董事會報告書
	董事與高層管理人員個人簡歷
	獨立核數師報告
	綜合損益表
	綜合全面損益表
	資產負債表
	綜合權益變動表
	綜合現金流量表
	財務報表附註
	五年財務概要
	封底

